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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu,
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the N.H. Department of Energy (ENERGY), to amend an existing contract with the Tri-
County Community Action Program Inc., (VC #177195), Berlin, NH, to give clients enrolled in the Low-
Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP), also known as the Fuel Assistance Program (PAP), a
onetime benefit on their electric bills by increasing the price limitation by $984,240 from $5,895,927 to
$6,880,167 using in American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds, from the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services, Administration for Children and Families effective upon Governor and Executive Council
approval through September 30, 2022. There is no time extension on this contract. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on January 12, 2022, item #42.

Funding is available in FY2023 in the following account:

Department of Enerev. LIHEAP FUEL ASST SUPPL ARP

02-052-052-520010-24490000

LIHEAP FUEL ASST SUPPL ARP

074-500587 Grants for Pub Assist & Relief

FY2023

$984,240

EXPLANATION

This request is being made to fully utilize the additional funds received for LIHEAP from the American Rescue
Plan Act funds (ARPA) provided to assist the New Hampshire fuel assistance households. Despite higher-than-
average fuel prices and a benefit increase of 60%, there is over $8.8 million in remaining grant funds. If not utilized
by September 30,2022, the ENERGY will be required to retum these fiinds to the federal government.

To fully,utilize tliese funds, ENERGY is proposing to use these expiring funds to offer a one-time electric benefit
to existing FAP clients to provide relief from increasing electric rates. These funds will be used to reduce or
eliminate any existing arrearages, reduce or eliminate the next electric bill, and if funds remain, exist as a credit
on their electric account to use against future bills. Each FAP client will receive $405 in onetime assistance



through this initiative. This amendment will rebalance the remaining available funds to ensure consistent benefit
amounts for FAP clients across the state.

The Department of Energy will be tracking these funds independently from the annual block grant but will be
following the normal terms and conditions applicable to the annual block grant.

In the event that these Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to
support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Gared Chicoine

Commissioner

Enclosures



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIEIE

Dq)artment of Energy

Amendment No. 1

This Amendment to the Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program, American Rescue Plan Act
Funds contract is by and between die State of New Hampshire, Department, Energy ("State* or
"Department") and Tri-County Community Action Program Inc., ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") a^^roved by the Governor and Executive Council
on January 12, 2022, (Item #42), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Fomi P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation to support continued delivery of these
^rvices; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read;

56,880,167.00 ,

2. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Paragraphs 1 and 2, to read:

In consideration of the satisfactory performance of the services as determined by the State, the State

agrees to pay over to the Contractor the sum of $6,880,167.00 (which in hereinafter is referred to as the
■^Granl")

Upon the State's receipt of the 2022 Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program grant from the US
Department of Health and Human Services, and Governor and Executive Council approval, the following
funds will be authorized:

$579,818.00 for administration costs and $6,300,349.00 for program costs.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF,

TRI-COUNTY COMMUAITV ACTION PROGRAM, INC.

Bv: \ Date:
Print Nain^^d Title

\
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Department of Ei^ergy

\

S. Chicoinc, Commissioner

Approv^ Attorney General*s Offke (Form, Substance and Execution)

^  Date: 7/15/2022
^Print Name and Title
Josua Harrison. Asst. Atty. General

Approval by the Governor and Executive Council

G&C Item number G&C Meeting Date:

TCCA Amendment Page 2 of 2
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that TRJ-COUNTY COMMUNITY

ACTION PROGRAM, INC. (TRI-COUNTY CAP) is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in

New Hampshire on May 18, 1965.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have

been received and is in good standing as far as this olTice is concerned.

Business ID: 63020

Certificate Number: 0005774957

0&

%

d

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 10th day of May A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



Sandy Alonzo

(Name)

CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

(Corporate Authority)

elected official of _Tri-County Community Action Agency Program, inc._
(Corporation name)

(Hereinafter the "Corporation"), a New Hampshire,
(State)

corporation, hereby certify that: (1) I am the duly

elected and acting Board Chair of the Corporation; (2) I maintain and have custody and am familiar with the
minute books of the Corporation; (3) I am duly authorized to issue certificates with respect to the contents of such
books; (4) that the Board of Directors of the Corporation have authorized, on ^ \ \ 7^7^ • such authority

' (Date)
to be in force and effect until September 30*^ 2022.

(Contract icmiination date)

The person(s) holding the below listed positi6n(s) are authorized to execute and deliver on behalf of the
Corporation any contract or other instrument for the sale of products and services:

Jeanne Robillard

(Name)

Chief Executive Officer
(Position)

(Name) (Position)

(5) The meeting of the Board of Directors was held in accordance with New Hampshire
(State of incorporation)

law and the by-laws of the Corporation; and (6) said authorization has not been modified, amended or rescinded
and continues in fiill force and effect as of the date hereof. Excerpt of dated minutes or copy of article or section
of authorizing by-law must be attached.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. I have hereunto set my hand as the Elected official of the corporation this

!( day of 20^.

STATE OF New Hampshire
COUNTY OF Coos

Bo hair

On this day of Julv 2022. before me, - the undersigned Officer,
personally appeared Sandv Alonzo who acknowledged her/himself to be the Board Chair

of Tri-Counly Community Acton Program, Inc., a corporation and that she/he as such Board Chair

being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Thereunto set my hand and official seal.

Commission Expiration Dale: |g

I'ihStary Public/Justice of the Peace

CHRISTINA MORIN. Notary Public
Mu rr, HampshtreMy Corrmssfoo Expires December 19. 2023



ACO#?0>* CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MMOO/YYYY)

06/29/20^

THIS CERTIFiCATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Ib an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ie8) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an ondorsemont. A statement on
this cartiflcato does not confer rights to tho certificate holder In lieu of such ondorsamonl(s).

PRODUCER

FlAI/Cross Insurance

1100 Elm Sirool

Manchester NH 03101

Andrea NicKlln

fKp.iP (603)669-3218 (603)645-4331
AnoBPfis- manch.censglcrossaguncy.txim

INSURF.R(S) AFFORDING COVERAQe NAX: *

iMSiiRFRA! Philadelphia Indemnity Ins Co 160S6

WSUREO

TrI-County Community Action Program. Inc

30 Exchar/ge Street

Berlin NH 03570 .

INSURER e: Graniia Sate Health Care and Human Services SeH-
INSURERC:

INSURER 0 :

INSURER E;

INSURER F;

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLIOES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POUCY PERIOD
INDICATED NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REOUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY. CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REOUCEO BY PAID CLAIMS.

liOLievsk
ifreff
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

X COMUERCIAL OENERAL LIABIUTY

OCCURClAJMS-UAOE

GENT. ACGREOATE LIMIT APPLIES PER

I  I LOCPOLICY □ PRO
JECT

OTHER'

AUTOMOBILE UABILITY

ANY AUTO •X
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAS

OEO X

5CHE0ULE0
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

RETENTION S 10.000

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
ANY PR0PRIET0R/PAN1NER«XECUI1VC
OFFICERAIEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Uandiloiy In Nil)
II y«s. ut*3ef
MSCftlPnON OP OPERATIONS WlQw

xror
IM3D WVD POLICY NUMBER

PHPK2'I3332«1

PHPK2433331

PHUB821555

HCHS20220000058 (3o.)NH

POLICY EFfl
tUM/DOIYYYYl

07/01/2022

07/01/2022

07/01/2022

01/01/2022

p
IMU/OO/YYYYI

07/01/2023

07/01/2023

07/01/2023

01/01/2023

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/LOCATIONS »VEHICLES (ACORO till. AddiOoml RtmAf** $<h«dul». in»y b« MUehedif mOf« ipAca 1* fdqulfed)

EAC.H OCCURRENCE
TTAMaCE TO RENTED
PREMISES IEj ecCT»nnt«>

M£D EXP (Any one PdWl

PEftSONAl. S AOV INJURY

GENERAt. ACGRKOATE

PROCUCTS • COUP/OPaGG

Pro/esslonat Llsbiliiy
C0MBINF.0 SMGLF. LIMIT
IEa »cciO«nO
BOOS.Y INJURY (Po panoA)

BOOILV INJURY (Pc accldem)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
tPer AteldenU

BACH OCCURRENCE .

ACOREGATE

X PER
STATUTE

OIH-
I ER

6.L. EACH ACCIDENT

e.L. DISEASE-EA EMPLOYEE

e.u DISEASE • polcy limit

1,000.000

100.000

S.OCO

1.000.000

3.000.000

3.000.000

$ 1.000.000

s  1.000.000

2,000.000

2.000.000

1.000.000

1.000.000

1.000.000

NH Deparlmonl of Energy

21 South Fruil St.. StO. 10

Concord NH 03301
1  ... ^

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVEREO IN
ACCORDANCE SWTH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AuniORireo representative

ACORO 25 (2016/03) Tho ACORD name and logo are roglstcrod marks of ACORO



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

\  TDDAa»s:RdayNH
Jared S. CNoolne ■1-«X)-735.2964

Tel.f603) 271-3670
DEPUTY COfcftflSSIONER
aTffclopherJ.EIkns.Jr. FAX No. 271-1526

Website:

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY www.enerBy.nh.oov
21S.FniaSL.Sulte10

Concord. N.H. 03301-2429

December 20, 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu,
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the N.H. Department of Energy (EhJERGY), to enter into a sole source contract with the
Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc., (VC #177195). Berlin, NH, in the amount of $5,895,927.00

-in .American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds, from the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services,
Administration for Children and Families for the Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program
(LIHEAP) as supplemental iimding effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval through
September 30, 2022. •
100% Federal Funds.

Funds are to be budgeted in FY2022 in the following account, contingent upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the operating budget, as follows:

Department of ̂ ergv. Fuel Assistance
02-OS2-05^520010^24490000
LIHEAP FUEL ASST SUPPL ARP e^2022
074-500587 Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $5,895,927.00

EXPLANATION

This contract is sole source based on the historical performance for the Community Action Agencies (CAA) in
the New Hampshire Fuel Assistance Program (FAP), their outreach and client-service capabilities, the synergies
that benefit the FAP as a result of the fi ve statewide CAA's implementation of several other federal assistance
programs, and the infiastnicture that is already in place to deliver FAP services.' ENERGY proposes to continue
to subcontract with the fi ve CAA's who have successfully provided FAP services at the local level for more than
three decades. The CAAs work closely with the ENERGY FAP Administrator if the implementation of the
program.

This request is being made to administer the American Rescue Plan Act funds (ARPA) to assist the New
Hampshire fuel assistance households in paying their energy bills. These hinds are intended to supplement the
annual fuel assistance grant award providing additional funding for many N.H. residents woridng to navigate
through the COVID-19 Pandemic. ENERGY is requesting to expend these additional funds by entering into



"borMtrwiljfurc'fi^NTH^CorffimjtirA^
fuel assistance clients.

The Department of Energy will be tracking these funds independently from the annual blpck grant, but will be
following the normal terms and conditions applicable to the annual block grant.

■in the event that these Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to
support this program.

RespectfiiUy submitted,

If Jarcd Chicoine
U Commissioner

JC/JEL

Enclosures



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Notice: This agreemeniandoDof its anachmentsshoDbccome public upon submission to Governor and
Execuuve Council for approval Aoy inforraationthai is private, cooridcnlialor proprietary must
be clearly identified to thcagcncy ondagrced lo in writing priorlo signing ibecontract.

agreement

The State of New Hampshire arid the Coniroctor hereby mutually agree as follows;

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I.I Slate Agency Name
New HampshtreDepanmentofEnergy /

[2 State Agency Address
21 So. Fruit Street, Ste. 10
Concord.New Hampshire 03301

1.3 ControctorName

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

30 Exchange Street. Berlin. NH 03570

1.5 ContraciorPhonc

Number

(603)752-7001

1.6 Account Number
02-52-52-520010-24490000-

074-500587 52EBGARP22

1.7 Completion Date
Sq)tcmbcr30,2022

1.8 Prkc Limitation

$5,895,927.00

1.9 CoDiractbigOrricer for Slat
Eileen Smigbwski, FoelAssLstan

6 Agency

ce Program Adrainistreior
1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
(603)271-3607

l.ll ContracnYS^atun

in

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Jeanne RobiOard, CEO

1.13 • State Abency Signature

■

X  Date;

1.14 Name and Title of Stale Agency Signatory

1.1 y/Approval by iheN.H. DepariltTfntof Administration, Division ol Personnel (ij applicable)

By. Director. On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form. Substanccand Execution) Ofapplicable)

By; On; U/Zf-hl

1.17 ApprovalbyiheOovemorandExccuiiveCounci) (ifapplicable)

G&C Hem number: G&C Meeting Date:

Page 1 of4
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X. "SERVICES TO.BE PERFORMED: The Slate of New
=Hifmpjhire^aciing"thiou^"the'agcncy-kIent>fTe3^5JSBlocilc2l"l'
("State"), engages conlracior identified in 'block 1.3
(••ContracioT")to pcifotm, and the ContraciorshaU pcrfonn, the
woik or sale of goods, or both, identifted and more pankutarty
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which b incorporated
herein by reference C'Servkcs").

3. EFFECTIVE DAtE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Noiwhhsianding any provision of ihis Agreement to the
coDirary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State ofNew Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and a Uobligations of the pa rticshereundcr,shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive
CouncD approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless nu such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the da tc ihc Agrcemenl is signed by
the Slate Agency as shown in block 1.13 C'Effcclivc Date").

. 3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date. aDSctvices performed by the Contractorprior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, a od in the event that this Agreement doe.s not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Conlractoi;
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must compklc all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contraiy. all obligations of the State hercunder, including,
whhout limhation, the continuance of payment hercunder, are
contingent upon the availability end continued appropriatbn of
funds affected by any state or federal Icgjsbiive or executive
action lhai reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation oravoUability of fundingfor ihb Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
pan. In no event shall the State be Kabfc for any payments
hereundcrin cxcessof such available appropriated funds. In the
cvcQl of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
Stale shall have the right lo withhold payment untfl such funds
bccomcavailablc, if ever, and shall have the right lo reduce or
tciminatc the Services undcrihb Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The StaicshaU not be required to tran.sferfund$ from any other
account or source to the Account idcritificd in block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Account a re reduced or una va ilablc.

5. contract price/price LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price,mcthodofpaymcm,and tcrrhsofpaymail
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which b incorporated herein byrcrcrcnce. -
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete rcimburvcmcni to the Contractor for all
expenses, of.whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in. the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the6ontractorTor ihe-S«rvices.-The-Slalc Shall—
IKaTEniolIiibiEiylt^UiTCdnliKtSi^lhS
5.3 The State reserves the ri^t to offset from any amounts
othcrwbe payable to the Contractorunder ihb Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c oranyothcrprovbion oflaw.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provbion in thb Agreement to the
contrary, and nolwithstandingunexpectedcireumsisnces, in no
event shall the tola I ofa 11 payments authorized, or actually made
hcrcundcr, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. compliance by CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, bws,
rcgubiions, and ordcn of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, inchiding, but not limited to, civi) rights and equal
cmploymcni opportunity bws. In addition, if thb Agreement b
funded in any part by monks of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all fedcralcxccutivc orders, rules, regubtions
and statutes, and with any rules, regubtions and guidelines as the
State or (he United States issue to impkmeni these regubtions.
The Controctorshallalso comply with all applicable intcUcciuai
property laws.
6.2 During the term of thb Agreement, the Contractor shall not
dbcriminntc against employees or applkanis for employment
bccouscofrecc,color, religion, crccd, agc,scx, handicap,sexual
orkniotion.ornfltionolorigin andwll takeaffiimativeaclionto
prevent such dbcrimination.
6.3. The Contractoragrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose ofasccrta iningcomplioncc with all ruks, rcgubiions
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of thb
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.
7.1 TheContraclorshalialilsown expense provide a II personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Coniractorwarrantsthal
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed artd
otherwbe authorized to do so undcrail appUcable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwbe authorized in writing, during the term of
thb Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contreciorshatl not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hbc, any person who b a State employee
or official, who b materially involved in the procurement,
adminbiraiion or performance of thb Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of thb Agreement.
7.3 The ComractingOfriccr specified in block 1.9. or hb or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dbpuic concerning the interpretation of thb Agreement, the
ContractirigOfficcr's dccbion shall be final for the State.

Page 2 of4
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of ihe foUowing acts or ombaioDS of the
CoDtiBctor shall constitute ait event ofdefaull hercunderC'Event
ofDcfauh"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 faikiie to submit any report required hcrcundcr; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform arty other coveitant, term orcondiibn of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon (he occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one.or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Conlractora wiilicn notice specifying the Event of
Defoultandrequinng it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from Ihe
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
tcmtinatethis Agrccmcoi, effective two (2)doysaAergivmg the
Controctornoticeof termination;

8.2.2 g^'e the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending aU payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue tu the Contractor during the
period from the dale of such notice until such time as the Slate
determines that the Contractorhas cured (he Event of [>efault

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give ihe Coniraccoro written noiiccspccifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the Stale suffers by reason of
anyEvcntofDcfttult; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contraclora written notice .specifying the Event of
Default, treat Ihe Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of Us remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No fa ilure by Ihe State to enforce any provisions hereof a ficr
any Event of E)efButl shall be deemed a waiver of its ri^ts with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failurcto.enforceany Event of Default shal
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at it.s sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
b pan, by thirty (30) days written noikc to the Contractor thai
the State is exercising its option to terminatctheAgreemeni.

.9.2 In thcevent of on early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of Ihe Services, the
Contrvctor shall, et the State's discretion, deliver to the
ContraciingOfficer, not later than fifteen (I S)days after the date
of letminalbn, a report ("Tcfmination Report") dcscnhing In
detail all Servbes performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the datcofteimination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of (he Terminadon Report shall
be idcniba I to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition,at the State's discretion, the Contractor

shall. WTthin 15 days of notbeof early tennination, develop and

submit to .(he State a TransUbn Plan for services under (he

Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

preservation.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things dcvebped or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formuUe,survcys,maps,charts,souodrecordings, video
recordings, pictorb! reproductions,drawings, analyses,graphic
rcpte$cniaiion$,computerprognims, compuierpriniouis, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
fmuhed or unfinished.

102 All data and any properly xvhbh has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under Ibis Agreemenr, shall be the property of (he State,-and
shall be relumed to the State upon demand orupon terminatbn
ofihis Agreement foranyreason.
10.3 Confidentiaiityofdata shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapler91-A or otherexlsting law. Disclosure ofdata requires
prbr writlcD approvaloftbeStale.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of thb Agreement the Contractor Ls in all re.spccts
an independent contractor, and b neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
offKcrs, cmpbyccs, ogcnts or members shall have authority to
bind (he Statcorreccivc anybcnefits.woriteTs' compensation or
other emoluments provided by (he State to its employees.

J2. ASSICNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 The Contractor.shaU not assign, or otherwise transferany
interest in thb Agreement without thepriorwriiten noibe, which
shall be provided to the State at least fificco (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of thb paragraph, a Change of Control shall consiituie
assignment. "Change of Controf' means (a) merger,
consolidation,or a transaction orscries ofrebled transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
(Jtrcci or indireci owner of fifty pcrecnt (50%) or more of the
voting shares or stmibr equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantiaUy all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services sholl be subcontracted by Che
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State b entitled to copies of all subcontractsandassignmenl
agreements and shall not be bound by onyprovbions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it b not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwbe exempted by bw,
ihe Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless (he State, hs
officers and employees, from and ogoinst any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property domages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other ebims asserledagom.<d
the State, its officers or employees, which arise Out of (or which
may be cbimed to arbc out oO the acts or omission of the

Page 3 of4
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Conlractor^or subconiractorsrincluding-bui not-limned to. the
?5ie9igence=2recltlciSoPinT6niioMl.coH3ucniLTKESlatTiKaD!DOl!l
be liable for aoy costs incurred by the Contracioraristng under
this paragraph n.Notwhhslandinglhci'oregoing.nothinghcrcm
coniD ined shs II be deemed to conslhute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby rescived to the
Stale. TTtis covenant in paragraph 13'shall survive the

. lerminationofthis Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain arv)
continuously matniatn in force, and shall require any
subcontructoror assignee to obtain and muiniain in force, the
following tnsurence:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or propeny damage, in amounts of no!
less than $1,000,000 per occunxnce and $2,000,000 agj^gate
orexcessiand
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage fomi covering all properly
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in on amountnot less than
80y»orthe whole replacement valueofihc propeny.
14.2 The policies descnted in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy formsandendorscmcntsapproved foruse in theStatc
of New Hampshire by the Nil. Depanmem of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in theStatcofNew Hampshire.
14.3 Tlie Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified In block 1.9,orhisor her successor, accrtincate(s)or
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
ConiraciorshaDa bo furnish to the CooiractingOfficer identified
in block 1.9, or hb or her successor, ccrtificatefs) of in.surancc
forall renews l(s) of insurance required underthis Agreement no
later then ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of eadi
insurance policy: The cenificate(s) of bisunince and any
renews b thereof sbail be attached snd are incoiporaied herein by
rcfereoce.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATrON.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA ("Workers'
Compensadon ").
15.2 To thccxtcnt the Contracloris subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maminin, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. ThcContractorshalJ furabh (he Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9,orhborhcrsucccssor,proorof Workers'
Compensation in the manner dcscnTjcd In N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewals) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be respon.tible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
•Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which mi^i arise under applicable State of New Hompshie
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
pcrfoTmanceofiheServiccs underthis Agreement.

er6;2N0TICE:rAn93I5lic^byraTpa*rtj^Tft.t<JItbIlbff31lKr;p;a;8yi:
shaU be deemed to ha ve been duty delivered or given at (he time
of mailing by. certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 end 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement maybcamcndcd,waived
or dbchaiged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parlies hereto end only after approval of such omcodmcni,
waiver or discharge by the Coveraor and Executive CouncD of
the State ofNew Hampshire unless no such approval b required
under (he circumstances pursuant to State law. rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. Thb Agreement shaU
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
bws of the State of New Hampshire, and b binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the panics ond their respective .successors
andassigns. The wording used in thb Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutualintent.andno rule
of construction shall be applied a gainst or In favorof any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
mabtained b New Hampshire Superior Court which shaD have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict
between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified b EXHIBIT
A) and/era llachmentssnd amendment thereof, Ibc terms of the
P-37 (asmodified b EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not btcnd to
benefit any third parties ond this Agreement shall not be
construed to confcrany such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The hcadbgs throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words coniabcd (hercb
fihall-in noway be held to explab, modify, amplify or a id b the
bierprelaiion, construction or meaobgof the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A arc bcorporaled
hereb by reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. Intheeventanyofthcprovisionsoflhis
Agrvemeni are held by a court of competent jurtsdiciion to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the romabbg provisions of
Ihb Agreement will rcmob b full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. Thb Agreement, which maybe
executed b a number of counterparts, each of whkh shall be
deemed an origbal, consiiiute.s the entire agrrcmeni and
undcrstandbg between the parties, and supersedes oil prior
agreements ond undcrstandbgs with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. On or before the date set forth in Block 1.7 of the General Provisions, the Contractor shall
deliver to the State an independent audit of the Contractor's entire agency by a qualified
independent auditor in good standing with the state and federal government.

2. This audit shall be conducted in accordance with the audit requirements of Office of
Management and Budget (0MB) Circular 2 CFR 200, Subpart F- Audit Requirements.
The Fuel Assistance Program shall be considered a "major program" for purposes of this audit.

3. This audit report shall include a schedule of revenues and expenditures by contract or grant
number of all expenditures during the Contractor's fiscal year. The Contractor shall utilize a
competitive bidding process to choose a qualified financial auditor at least every four years.

4. The audit report shall include a schedule of prior years' questioned costs along with an Agency
response to the current status of the prior years' questioned costs. Copies of all 0MB letters
written as a result of audits shall be for^'arded to NH DOE. The audit shall be forwarded to
NH DOE within one month of the time of receipt by the Agency, accompanied by an action
plan for each fmding or questioned cost.

5. Delete the following from paragraph 9 of the General Provisions: "The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall be identical to those of any Final
Report described in Exhibit A."

6. The costs charged under this contract shall be determined as allowable under the cost principles
detailed In 2 CFR 200 Subpart E - Cost Principles.

7. Program and financial records pertaining to this contract shall be retained by the Agency for 3
(three) years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report per 2 CFR 200.333 -
Retention Requirements for Records and until all audit findings have been resolved.

8. In accordance with Public Law 103-333, the "Departments of Labor, Health and Human
Services, and Education, and Related Agencies Appropriations Act of 1995", the following
provisions are applicable to this grant award;

a) Section 507: "Purchase of American -Made Equipment and Products - It is the sense
of the Congress.that, to the greatest extent practicable, all equipment and products
purchased with funds made available in this Act should be American-made."

b) Section 508: " When issuing statements, press releases, requests for proposals, bid
solicitations and other documents describing projects.or programs funded in whole or in
part with federal money, all states receiving federal funds, including but not limited to
state and local governments and recipients of federal research grants, shall clearly state
(1) the percentage of the total costs of the program or project which will be financed

.TCCA IJHEAPARP22 Exhibiu A. D
CFDA«93.568
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with federal money, (2) the dollar amount of federal funds for the project or program,
and Oythe'percentage'and'dollar amount of the total costs of the project-or program tha^

^irh'€'fihsi^^Ephdri-goverTuhCTfal*sources":''*-~~--^-'^"^~"^^"^^""^""'"'^~~~

9. CLOSE OUT OF CONTRACT. All final required reports and reimbursement requests shall be
submitted to the State within thirty (30) days of the completion date (Agreement Block 1.7)..

.TCCA LIHEAPARP22 Exhihils A, B &
Contractor Iniiials

CFDAJ»93.568
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EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

The Contractor agrees to provide Fuel Assistance Program services to qualified low income
individuals, and agrees to perform all such services and other work necessary to operate the Program in
accordance with the requirements of this contract, the principles and objectives set forth in the Fuel
Msistance Program Procedures Manual, Information Memoranda, and other guidance as determined
byNHDOE.

Fuel Assistance Program (FAP) services will be defined to include the following categories:

1. Outreach, eligibility, determination and certification of FAP applicants.

2. Payments directly to energy vendors:
a. Reimbursement for goods and services delivered
b. Lines of credit

c. Budget plan payments

3. Payments directly to landlords via vouchers for renters who pay their energy costs as undefined
portions of their rent.

4. Payments directly to clients only when deemed appropriate and necessary as defined in the Fuel
Assistance Procedures Manual.

5. Emergency Assistance in the form of reimbursements for goods or services delivered in
accordance with paragraphs 3 and 4 above.

TCCA UHEAPAIIP22

CFDA#93.568

libils A, B & C

or Iniiiats

Exhibils.
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Date
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EXHIBIT C

"PAYMENT-TERMS ' ^ ̂

In consideration of the satisfactory performance of the services as determLned by the State, the State ■

agrees to pay over to the Contractor the sum of $5,895,927.00 (which hereinafter is referred to as the

"Grant").

Upion the Slate's receipt of the 2022 Low income Home Energy Assistance Program grant from the US

Department of Health and Human Services, and Governor and Executive Council approval, the

following funds will be authorized:

$599,818.00 for administration costs and $5,296,109.00 for program costs.

The dates for this contract are January 12,2022 through September 30, 2022.

Approval to obligate (Exhibit I) the above-awarded funds will be proidded in writing by the New

Harhpshire Department of Energy to the Contractor as the Federal fiinds become available.

Drawdowns from the balance of funds will be made to the Contractor only after written documentation

of cash need is submitted to the State. Disbursement of the Grant shall be in accordance with

procedures established by the State as detailed in the Fuel Assistance Program Procedures Manual.

CFDA Title:

CFDANo:

Award Name;

Federal Agency:

Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program

93.568

Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program

Health & Human Services

Administration for Children and Families

Office of Community Services

.TCCA UHEAPARPZ2

CFDA#93.568
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of theOrug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C.
701 etseq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of
the General Provisions, execute the following Certification:

CERtlFICATlON REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Th is ccnification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151 -5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace
Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 etseq.). The January 31,1989rcgulaiions were
amended and published as Part II of the Mav 25.1990 Federal Rcttister (pages 21681 -21691), and require
certification by grantees (and by in fcrcnce sub-granlccs and sub-contractors) prior to award that they will
maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the rcgulationprovidcs that a grantee (and by inference
sub-grantees and sub-contractois) that is a state may elect to make one certification to the Department in cat^
federal fiscal year in lieu of certificales for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by ihcccrtiflcation.
The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed wlwn the Agency
awards the grant. False certification orvioialicn of the certification shall be grounds forsu^cnsionofpayments,
suspension or termination of grants. or government-wide suspension or dcbarment. Contractors using this form
should send itto:

New Hampshire Department of Energy,
21 So. Fruit St., Stc. 10, Concord, NH 03301

(A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by;

(a) Publishinga statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, di^butlon,
dispensing, posscssionoforuseofacontToliedsubstance is prohibited in the grantee's workplace
and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition; .

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about

(1) the dangers ofdrugabusc in the workplace;
(2) the grantee's policy of maintaininga drug-free workplace;
(3) any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
(4) the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in

the workplace.

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
cmploymem under the grant, the employee will

(I) abidcby thctermsoflhestatcment;and
CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHERTHAN INDIVIDUALS,cont'd

US DEPARTMENT OFUEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES ■ CONTRACTORS

?37 Exhibits D thru H
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us DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

USDEPARTMENTOFLTABOR

-USDEPAR-TMENT-OFENERGY-
(2) notify the employer in writing ofbis or her conviction fora vioiationofacriminal^rug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than fivccalendardays after such conviction.

(e) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
off^ccr on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the federal agency
has desi^Qted a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number($)ofeachoftected grant; '

(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted:

(1) T^ing appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

(2) Requiring such ennployce to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistanceor
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a federal, state, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency.

(g) Makinga good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation
of paragraphs (a), (b). (c). (d), (c), and (f).

(B) The grantee may insert in the space provided below the sitc(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each locauon)

Check Q if there arc workplaces on file that are not identified here.

G:>'(vv>(y\vv\\Au Af V\fsv\ ^<oc.r<u.^
Contractor Nari J

January 12, 2022 to September 30,2022

Period covered by this Certification

Name and Title of Authorized Contractor Repttscntaiive

Cont^acto^ftcir«entat^vc SignaKire Date

P37 Exhibrt.<5 D ihni H
LIHEAPARP22
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXmBIT E

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Section
319 of Public l^w 101-121, Goyemmcnt wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352
and furthcragrecs to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections I. II and 1.12 of the General
Provisions, execute the following Certification:

CERTCFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
US DEPA RTMENT OF LABOR
US DEPARTMENT OF EN ERGV

Programs (indicateapplicablepfogram covered)'
LIHEAP

Contract Period: January 12.2022 to September 30.2022

The undersigned certifies to the best o f his or her knowledge and belief that:

(1) No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paidby or on behalf of the undcisigncd, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection
wi A the awarding of any federal contract, continuation, renewal, amcndmcni, or modification of any
federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-granteeor sub
contractor).

(2) funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, oron employee ofa member of Congress in connection with this federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor)
the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Fomt LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Ubbyinc''
maccordancc with Its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-i.

(3) The undersigned shell require that the language of this certification be included in the award document for
sub-owa^ at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

ThisccrtificatiOT is a material representation offact upon which reliance wasplaced when this transaction was
made or entered into. Submission of ihLs certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
imposed by Section 1352, Title 3ft, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be
subject to acivil^naltydinot IdsihanSIO.OOO and not more than Si 00 ,OCX) for each such failure.

iConlrtfBt^ Representadv^Signaturc Contractor's Reprcscotalive Title

XxY Cov>^Ct>VV\VVtioytxU.. Taw tmC-
Contractor Name \ 0 ' Dale -

UHEAPARPaa Exhibits D thru H
CFDA/OTJ68 n _ ,



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

■"/ "7,7 . ,~, 'STANnA.o.n.r.vwip~iT"F,"~
The Contractor identified in Section r.3oftheGcnaaJ Provisions agrees to con^ly with theprovisionsof

^ E«'^hve Order 12549 end 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debantient, Suspension.and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees (o have the Contractor's representative, as identified in
Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHERRESPONSIBILITY MATTERS-PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Instructiomfor Certification

(1) By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

(2) The inability ofa person to provide thccerlification required below will not necessarily result in denial of
participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an explanation
of why It cannot provide the certification The certification or explanation will be considered in connection
with the NH Department of Energy's determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure
of the prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person
from participation in this transaction.

(3) TTie certification in this clause is a material rcprcsentalion of fad upon which reliance was placed when NH
DOE determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective primary
participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to oihcr remcd ics available to the
federal government, NH DOE may terminate this transaction.for cause ordefauli.

(4) The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the NH DOE agency to whom
this proposal (contract) is submitted if at anytime the prospective primary participant learns that its

erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.
(5) -^e terms "covered fronsaction." "debarred," "suspcnded,""Lndigiblc;"Mowertier covered transaction,"

participant," "person," "primary covered transaction." "principal." "proposal." and "voluntarily excluded,"
as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules
implementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76, Sec the attached definitions.

(6) The proyective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with
a person who is dcbanred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
covered transaction, unless authorized by NH DOE.(7) The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that It will include the clause
titled Certification RegardirigDebamient, Suspension, Incligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier
Covered Transactions,' provided by NHDOE, without modification, iri all lower tier covered transactions
and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

(8) A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a cerlificalion ofa prospective participant in a lower tier
covered transactiott that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded from the covered
transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and
frequency by which It deicrminesthc eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not rcquirixl to
check ihcNon-procurcmcnt List (ofexcluded parties).(9) Nothing contain^ in the foregoing shall be construed to requlrecstablishmcnt of a system of records in order
to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge.and information ofa
purticipant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary
course of business dealings.

(10) Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered
transactionkriowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debamed,
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies
available to the federal government, NH DOE may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

UHEAf>ARP22 P37 Exhibits D ihni H
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f

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMEIVT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS, cont'd

Certification Regarding Deharment, Suspension, and Other
Responsibility Matters - Primary Covered Transactions

(1) The prospective primary participant cerTifles to ihcbcst of its knowledge and belief, thai it and its
principals:

(a) arcnoiprescmlydcbarred,suspcndcd,proposcdfordcbannent,dcclared ineligible,orvoiuniarily
excluded from covered transactions by any federal department or agency;

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had a
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or for a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state or local)
transaction or a contract undcra public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitmst statutes
or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records,
making false statements, or receiving stolen prope^;

(c) are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(federal, state or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (I) (b) of
this certification; and

(d) have not within a three-year period preceding ibis application/proposal had one or more public
(federal, stale or local) transactions terminated for cause or default.

(2) Where the prospective primary participant Is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification,
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, IneligibUityand
Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Transactions

(To 8e Supplied to Lower Tier Participants)

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower licr participant, as defined in
45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals: •

(a) are not presently dcbaiTcd, suspended, proposed fordebarmcnt, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

(b) where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) lhat it will include this -
clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Incligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion - lx>wcr
TierCovercd Transactions." wiilj^ut modification in alllowcr tier-covcrcd transactions and in all solicitations for
lower licr-covcrcd transacqoos.

C&o
ContraBl0Rcprcsentative Signature ^ Contractor's Representative Title

ContractorNamc « ^ Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identiHed in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections l.1 1 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
cenificaiion;

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), theContracior agrees to make reasonable efforts to
comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

Cbo
Conlractoi^eprcscntativc Signature Contractor's Representative Title

"Ta- Coov^U UllC.
ContTTJctorName \ Date

P37 Exhibits DihniH
LIHEAPARP22
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STAND ARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION
Public Law 103-227, Part C

ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

In accordance with Part CofPublic Law 103-227. the "Pro-aildrcn Act of 1994", smoking may not be pcrmincd
in any portion of any indoor facility owned or regularly used for the provision of health, day care, education, or
library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by federal programs either directly or
through state or local governments. Federal programs include grants, cooperative agreements, loans and loan
guarantees, and contracts. The law docs not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities
funded solely by Medicare or Mcdicaid funds, and portions or facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol
treatment.

TJe above language must be included m any sub-awaids thai contain provisions forchildrcn's services and that
all sub-grantees shall certify compliance accordingly. Failure to comply with theprcvisiorw of this law may result
in the imposition ofa civil monetary penalty of up to Si ,000 per day.

J

Com irRcprescritKlive Signature Contractor's Representative Title

T"'- CcoaVm OwvwuanU AcVvtt/i iwc. I
ContraitorName \ ^ v. ***4*—

L1HEAPARP22 P3 7 Exhibits D ihm H
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FAF Approval to OMigate EXAMPLE ONLY

.ARPROVAL>TO:OBUIGATE.

.CxhlbUI.

STATE

FUEL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM '

First 7/1/2019 Wood and SEAS Only ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL
ICONTRACTED BUDGET .. 539,220.00 5,646,370.00 4,582.80 357,200.00 6,546.372.60 |
EXPECTED BUDGET

PREVIOUSLY OBUQATEO

0.00

0.00

0.00

- 0.00 -

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
[THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.165.551,00 1
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE

0.00

539,220.00
1.165.551.00

4,480,819.00
0.00

4,582.60
0.00

357.200.00
1.165.551.00

5,380,821.60

BMCA

First 7/1/2019 AOMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE16 TOTAL
(CONTRACTED BUDGET 95,663.00 1,003,586.00 1,000.00 69.960.00 1,170,209.00 1
EXPECTED BUDGET "• '

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00

t

0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00

0.00
(THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 207,112.00 0.00 0.00 207,112.00 1
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE

, 0.00

95.663.00

207,112.00
796,474.00

0.00

1.000.00

0.00

69.960.00

207,112.00

963.097.00

SNHS

First 7/1/2019 AOMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL
(CONTRACTED BUDGET 163,777.00 1.718.152.00 1,000.00 84.220.00 1.967,149.00 1
EXPECTED BUDGET

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED D.OO 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00

0.00
(THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 354,578.00 0.00 0.00 354,576.00. |
• TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE
0.00

163,777.00
354.578.00

1,363,574.00
0.00

1,000.00

0.00

84,220.00
354,678.00

1,612,571.00

scs

First 7/1/2019 AOMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL
jCONTRACTEO BUDGET 83.835.00 876,501.00 825.00 64,960.00 1,029,121.00 1
EXPECTED BUDGET

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 . 0.00

0.00

0.00
(THIS APPROVAL TO OBUGATE 0.00 181,504.00 0.00 0.00 181.504.00 1
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBUGATE

0.00

93,835.00

181.504.00

697,997.00

0.00

625.00

0.00

64,960.00
181.504.00

847,617.00

CAPSC

First 7/1/2019 AOMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE IB TOTAL
jCONTRACTEO BUDGET 54,676.00 573,593.00 757.60 55.110.00 684,136.60 1
EXPECTED BUDGET '

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED .  . 0:00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00

0.00
(THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 118.373.00 " 0.00 0.00 118,373.00 1
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBUGATE

0.00

54,676.00
113.373.00

455,220.00

0.00

757.60

0.00

55,110.00
118,373.00

565.763.60

TCCA

First 7/1/2019 • ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL
[CONTRACTED BUDGET 140,269.00 1.471,538.00 1.000.00 82,950.00 1,695.757.00 (
EXPECTED BUDGET

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

"  0.00

... 0.00
(THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 303.984.00 0.00 o.oo 303,984.00 1
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE

" 0.00

140,269.00

303,984.00

1,167,554.00

0.00

1.000.00

0.00

82,950.00

303,964.00

1,391.773.00
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NEWHAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITV

AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardccs of
individuaJ federal grants equal to or greater than 525,000 and awarded on or after October 1,2010, to
report on data related to executive compensation and associated Urst-ticr sub-grants of $2 5,000 or more.
If the initial award is below 525,000 but subsequent grant modificaiions result in a total award equal to or
over $25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA repotting requir^cnlsas of the date ofthea^vard.

In accordance with 2 CFRPart Mdi^Reportin^Sub-award and Executive Compensation Infonnation),
the New Hampshire Department of Energy must report the following in formaiion for any sub-award or
contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements;

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award |
3) Funding agency ,
4) NAJCS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title dcscriptivcof the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principal placcofp^ormanoe
9) Unique Identifleroflhcentity (DUNS#)
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

a. Morelhon80%ofannualgrossrcvenucsarcfromthcFcdcralgovcmmcntaDdthose •
.  revenues are greater than $25M annually, and

b. Compensation informallon is not already available through reporting to the SEC.-

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA-required data by the end of the month plus 30 days in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 \Reporting Sub-award and Executive Compensation Infonnation), and
further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the
General Provisions, execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the New
Hampshire Department of Energy and to comply with all applicablcprovisions of the Fcdao! Financia]
AccouniabHity and Transparency Act.

"RoVA\c.<^A (l5"Q
(ContractorKcprcsentaliv^Signaturc) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

AcVtty\
(Contractor Name) (Dale)

Coninictor Initials

Dale

of2Page t
LIHEAPARP22 CFDA#93.56R



NE W HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions arc true and accurate.

I. The DUNS number for your entity is: Ol-'Cb

2. In your business or organization'sprcccdingcompletcd fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (I) 80 percent or more of yourannual gross revenue in U.S. federal comrocts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants. and/or cooperaiivc agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues'
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grams, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements?

NO ^YESXn
If the answer to U1 above is NO. stop bere.

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the foOowiog:

3. Docs the public have access to informaiicnabout the compensation of the executives in your business
or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Inlcmal Revenue Code of 1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here.

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the foDowiag:

4. The names and compensation of the five most h igh ly compensated officers in your business or
organization arc as follows:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Nome: Amount:

Name; Amount:

Name: Amount:

ititlt V,:A\Coouactor Initiilj _

Daic_iaA2aism2ai
Page 2 of2
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Sccrctoo' of Stoic of ihc Stale of New Hampshire, do hereby certify ihot TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY

action program, inc. (TRI-COUNTY CAP) is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to iransoct business in

New Hampshire on May 18. 1965. 1 funhcr cehily ihat all fees and documcnis required by the Secretao" of State's ofTlce have

been received and is in good slanding as far as thi.s office is concented.

Business ID: 63020

Certificate Number: 0005362631

Ofi
<9

o

A

IN TESTIMONY WJtEREOF.

1 lierelo set my hand and cause to be afTixed

the Sea! of the State of New Hump.shirc.

this 5ih day of May A.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Secretory of State



CERTmCATE OF VOTE
(Corporate Authority)

_ 5VK\fVi^\KYv^.^ Board Chair of CovhftVa
(Cofporeiioi^wne)

(Hereinafter the "Corporation"), a . V^SAO^VsyC .corporation, hereby certify that: (1) I am the duly
(Scate)

elected and acting Board Chair of the Corporation; (2) I maintain and have custody and am familiar with the
minute books of the Corporauon; (3)' 1 am duly authorized to issue certificates with rcs^t to the contents of such
books- (4) that the Board of Directors of the Corporation have authorized, on ^]^5[90a\ , such authority

'• (Daw)

to be in force and effect until .f)€^Vg.yV\V>^ .
(Contract icmunation date)

The pcrson(s) holding the below listed position(s) arc authorized to execute and deliver on behalf of the
Corporation any contract or other ihstiument for ihe'sale of products and services:

Jeanne Robillard Chief Executive Qfftcer
(Name) (Position)

Randall Pilotte Chief Financial Officer
(Name) (Position)

(5) The meeting of the Board of Directors was held in accordance with New Hampshire
(Stale of incorporution)

law and the by-laws of the Corporation; and (6) said authorization has not been modified, amended or rescinded
and continues in full force and effect as of the dote hereof Excerpt of dated minutes or copy of article or section
of authorizing by-law must be attached.

IN_wn7N)ESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the Board Chair of the corporation this
day of 'L>€ce>^'yv^ , 2031 .

Board Jhair

STATE OF ^New Hampshire
COUNTY OF Coos

On this day of 20.?\ . before me, Christina Morin the undersigned
Officer, personally appeared . Sandv Alonzo who acknowledged her/himself to be the Chajr

•  of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. , a corporation and that she/he as such
Board Chair being authorized to do so, excculrf the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein

contained.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

CHRiSTtNA MORIN. Notary Public Notuty^blic/Justicc of the Peace
State ot Naw Hampshiic

My Commission Expires Decemt>er 19,2023
Commission Expiration Date:
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC.

19FV21 Board Resolution: Resolution of the Corporation

Auvhorilv-lo Siiai

The Board of Directors of Tri County Community Action Program, Inc. (the "Corporation")
cak^ the following action.

Resolved,

That the Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. Chief Executive Officer (CEO) Jeanne L.
Robillard, or the Chief Financial OfTicer (CFO) Randal! S. Pilotlc and Chief Programs Officer

(CPO) Kristy Letendre acting as a designee of the CEO, are hereby authorized on behalf of this
Corporation to enter Into contracts with the FederaJ Government, Stale of New Hampshire, and
any-other parties as deemed necessary and to execute any and ail documents, agreements and
other instruments and amendments, revisions or modifications thereto, as may be deemed
necessary, desirable or appropriate for the corporation; this authorization being enforced and
effectiveuntilJime30*',2022. .

Attest, the resolution adopted therein was duly authorized by the Board of Directors on May 25*,
2021

By;_
Name: Sandy Albnzo
Title: Board Chair

Dmimmoy!

Bv: I

Name: George Sykes
Title: Treasurer



ACORD CERfIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
cuTCiMMOorrrYY)

M/Oe/2021

»THI8CCTTlFICATE-ISIS8UEOA8AI(IATT¥R;OfclNFORMATION;ONLY,ANDXONFER5:NO.«IGHTS.U60NJl|Ej:ERI15}CAtEJtOLDe5J:Hl?.
■«RTlFT(3PreVaE8T5bT^FFlRMATlVei:rO^><eb"ATP»%ty'AMeNbrEXTENO'dR-ALTERTHECOVCftAGE'AFfORDeOBV-T«BH»OdCIE9--
OELOW. TWI9 CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE.A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURERIS). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. ^
IMPORTANT: If th« ccrttflcsM holdir It an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy<lta) must h«v* ADDITIONAL INSURED proy|»lort» of IM tndOfMd.
(f SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, •ubJ#cltolh« t®rm» •«<! condlUoni of lh» policy, eoflain poIIcMfl may requira an •ndoraomont Aatatamenlon

PRODUCER

Pt/d/Cross Insuranca

1100 Elm Sueei

MinchMier NH 03101

AndrM NkWn

KS'S, («03)MMO!.8 1 (603IM5J331
fftrtPPM- M»nch.ceits®cros3agei>cy.com

lirSURER(S) AFFOROIMO COVERAOE KAICf

INSURER At Phladelphia indemnity Ins Co te058

CMSUREO

TrLCounly Community AcSon Program. Inc
30 Exchange Street

B«nin HH 03570

iMKiiRER B' Granhe State Health Caie and Human Servfcas SaM- 524292

INSURER c -.

WSUREROt

INSURER E;

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 21 -22 Al Urm REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE USTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY RCftlOO
INDCATEO NOTWITMSTANOINC ANY REOUIREMsNT. TERM OR CONDITION OF AW CONTRACT OR OTHER OOCUMGNT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE »«SURANCE APPOROEO BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONOinONS OF SUCH POUCIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

nmr
iia. TYPCOF'NSlMAWCe Rmrwi POUCVNUMSER rrut.iTvr.Tir'i'r'.s'T.'mi iiiaTS

COKMEROAL OCNCRAL UABUm

OCCURI.CLAMS4M0E

OCNL AOGRegATe LMT APnjfS Pfift
X poucr rn ̂  |_JPOLICY I LOC

OTiCR:
AUTOMOon.s uAUurr

X ANY AUTO

OVMEO
AUTOS ONLV
HREO
AUTOS ONLY

UUBRCLLALIAD

excess UAB

OED

SCHEDULEO
AUIOS
NON-OWHEO
AUTOS ONLY

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-IM06

X HfTEWTlOH I .'O-QOO
WORKERS COMPeNJATION.
AND euPLOYCRr LIADIUTY
ANY PROPRrSTORlPARTHEWeXECUTIVE
OFFICERAilEASER EXCIUOCOT
(MjntffMY In KH)
M m. a*<*» undwn m. OMOM unM

0
odsCRIPHOH OF OPERATIONS I

ProtossloAal lIsbDIty

PHPK229SA54

PHPK2293481

PHU877441fl

HCHS20210000428 (3a.)NH

PHPK22fl34S4

07/01/2021

07/01/2021

07/01/2021

02/01/2021

07/01/2021

07/01/2022

07/01/2022

07/01/2022

02/01/2022

07/01/2022

EACH OCCURRENCE
P/UUGE ro HEWEP
PREUtseatEioeowwtal

mEO EXP lAffr Cf p«raen)

PERSONAL t AOY MJURY

GENERAL aOOREOATS

PRODUCTS • COaIP^ AGO

COAOMEO SiNCLE laur

ROOKY INJURY (Pw pawn)

RCIOLY INJURY (Pa aesUtRl}

PROPCrrTY OAMACE
(PninetlftwKl

BACH OCCURRENCE

AOORtOATE

fijxumTW
6.L. EaCHACCCENT

e.L. dSEASe • 6AEAIPLOY6E

e.i. msEASE - POLICY Loyr
Each Occurrence

Aggregsta

1.000.000

100.000

5,000

1.000.000

3.000.000

3.000.000

S 1.000.000

2.000.000

2.000.000

l.OOO.OOO

1.000.000

1.000,000

l.OOO.OOO

3.000.000

OeSCRIPTlON OP OPERATMHSI LOCATIONS /VEMCIES (aCORO 111. A«tt>«ii RmwL* ScHpAAa K mcf. •«>«• i» fajU.«i)
Refer lo pcOcy for excivsiorwry errdorsemenu errd special provlsloos.

NH Oepartmant of Energy
21 SouUt Frun$L. Sie. 10

Concord HH 03301
^  --1^ '

r

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIOEO POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE OELIVEREO IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS,

AUiHORueo nePRBseirTATTVE

ACORD 2S (2010/03) The ACORD name and lOQO are retjistered marks of ACORO



Financial Statements

TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC.

AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019
AND

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORTS
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PRl)rESSii>>«AJ .\SSrKUATUW

T0 the Board of Directors of certified pubuc accouwtani:)
Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. and Affiliate wolfeboro • korth cOiW
Berlin, New Hampshire WVER • concord

STRATHAiM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Financial Sfafemenfs
We have audited the accompanying-consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community
Action Program. Inc. and Affiliate (New Hampshire nonprofit organizations), which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the related
consolidated statements of cash flows and functional expenses for the years then ended, the
related consolidated statement of activities for the year ended June 30. 2020 and the related
notes to the consolidated financial staterfients.

Management's Responsibility for the FinanciaiStatements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America: this Includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free" from material misst'atement. whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Goverr^ment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit Involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessrhents, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in -order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate In the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of .accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.



Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred, to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc. and Affiliate as of June 30. 2020 and 2019. and its consolidated cash flows for the years
then ended, and the changes in its net assets for the year ended June 30. 2020, in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United Stales of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information
We have previously audited TrI-Counly Community Action Program, inc. and Affiliate's 2019
consolidated financial statements, and we" expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those
consolidated financial statements in our report dated October 21, 2019. In our opinion, the
summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30.
2019, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated financial statements
from which it has been derived.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated, in ail material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Governmenf Aud/f/ng Sfancfards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
Octot>er 28. 2020, on our consideration of Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc.'s Internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County
Community Action Program. Inc.'s Internal control over financial reporting "or on compliance.
That report Is an Integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Governrnent Auditing
Standards In considering Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc.'s internal',control over
financial reporting and compliance.

October 28, 2020 .
North Conway. New Hampshire



TRI-nnilNTY COMMUNITY. ACTinM PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30. 2Q20 AND 2019

ASSETS

2020 2019

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalenis 5 2,257,081. S
Restricted cash, Guardianship Services Program
Accocints receivable
Property held for sale
Pledges receivable
Inventories

Prepaid expenses

796.937 583,963

1,322,852 1.274,083
47,000 47.000

307.017 231,161

102,430 85,886
77.882 34.037

Total current assets

PROPERTY

Property and equipment .
Less accumulated depredation

•  Property, net

OTHER ASSETS

Restricted cash

TOTAL ASSETS

. LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of long term debt
Current portion of capitel lease obligations
Accounts payable
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued, salaries

Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

Other liabilities

Total current liabilities

LONG TERM DEBT

Long term debt, net of current portion
Capital lease obligations, net of current portion

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

.  . Without donor restrictions

. With donor restrictions

4.911,199 3.656.-88a

12.344.805 12,086,152

(5.601.944) (5.178.535)

6.742.861 6,907.617

384.711 418.936

$ 12,038.771 $ 10,983,433

$  437,843 S  148,449
3.554 4.870

180.427 221,571
243.779 204,079

49,059 210,952

137,304 89,524

181.463 197.157
850.982 598.195

2.064.411 1.674.797

4,792,557 5,227,835
• 3.355

6.876.968 6,905.987

4.565,253 3,399,192

596,550 678.254

Total net assets 5.161.803 4,077,446

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS S 12,038.771 $ 10,983,433

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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-TRI^OUNTY-COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, IMC AND AFFILIATE.

■x.>' COWSOUDATeaSTATEMEWT.QRACTIVITlES ' '

FOR TH£ YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020
WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARtZEO COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grants and contracts
Program funding
UtlQty programs
tn-kind contdOutlons
Contrtbullons
FundrslsJng
Rants' incomo
Interest income
Gain (loss) on disposal .of property
Loss on write down of property htfd for sate
Otner revenue

Total rovonues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS

Total revenues, other support and
net assets released from restrictioru

FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
Program Servlcci;

Agency Fund
Head Start
Guardianship
Traruportatlon ■'
Volunteer
Workforce tJcvelopmeni
Carrot! County Dental
Support Center
Homeless
Errergy end Community DevelopmenI
Elder .
Housing Scrvtces

Total program services

Supporting ActlvUles;
General and odminlstrarFve
Fundralsing

Total supporting activilies

Total functional expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS. BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS. END OF YEAR

Without Donor
Roaulctlong

$  14.425.841
1.084.133
1.923.653

455.826
328.215

32.544
635.559

923
2.225

4.379

18.891.298

565,176

19.456.474

1.047.356
2.769.065

769.597
991.504

94.845
346.114
653,810
558,244
800.148

7.824.201
1.149.136

220.900

17,224,920

1.062.613
2.880

1.065,493

18.290.413

1.166,061

3.399.192

S  4.565.253

With Donor

Rgatftstlpna

S  483.472

483.472

(565.176)

(61.704>

(81.704)

678.254

2020
Total

14.909.313
1.084,133
1.923,653

455.626
■  326.215

32.644
635.559

923
2.225

4.37fl

19.374.770

19,374.770

1.047,356
2.769.065

769.597
991.504

94.845
346.114
653.810
556,244
800,148

7.824.201
1.149.136

220.900

17.224.920

1,062.613
2.880

.1.065.493.

18.290.413

1.084.357

4,07_L446

2019
Total

14.479.114
1.167.509
1.287.103

477,167
230,986

39,303
625.046

643
(32.892)

(255,492)
198 304

18,210,651

16.210.651

950.639
2.758.782

767.241
916.069
116.406
354.263
747.474
355.206
714.066

7.786.560
1.191.571

172.652

16.635.151

1.032.207
6.895

1.042.102

17.877.253

333.598

3.743.848

596.SS0 5 - S.161.803 S 4.077.446

See Notes to Consotldatod Financial Statements
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TRI.COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTinW PROGRAM INC. AND AFFlLIATfi

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
POR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. ?0?Q AND 2Q19

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVfTlES
Change In nel assets
Adiustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities;

Depredation and amortization
(Gain) loss on disposal of property
Loss on write down of property held lor sale

(Increase) decrease In assets:
Accounts receivable

Pledges receivabia
Inventories

Prepaid et^enses
Increase (decrease) in liabiHtios:

Accounts payable
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued salaries
Accrued expenses

Refundable advances .

Other liabilities

NET CASH PROVIDED 8Y OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of property
Purchases of property and equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net repayment on demand note payable
RopaymenI on long-term debt
Repayment on capliai lease obligations

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH

CASH AND RESTRICreO CASH. BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION;

Cash paid during the year fon

Interest

SUPPLEfHENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING
AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Property donated

2020 2019

$  1.084.357 $  333.598

436,197 448.556

(2,225) 32.892

-

255.492

(48,769) (117.426)

(75,856) (18.954)

(16.544) 1,683

(43.845) (8.397)

(41,144) (15.705)

39.700 958

(161.893) 23.444

47.780 (42.364)

(15.694) 6.088

252.787 211.027

1.454.851'' 1.110.892

4,495 14.283

(273.711) (95.588)

(269.216)

(145,864)
(4.671)

(150.555)

1.035.080

2.403.649

131.879

(81.305)

(516.022)
(141.273)

__11£46)

(861.741)

367.646

2.035.803

$  3.438.729 S. 2.403.649

152.078.

18.830

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statomonts
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PROGRAmNCr"AND"A'FFinATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 AND 2019

NOTEI. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Tri-County
Community Action Program. Inc. and its affiliate. Cornerstone Housing North. Inc.
The two organizations are consolidated because Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc. controls 100% of the voting power of Cornerstone Housing North. Inc.
All significant intercompany items and. transactions have been eliminated from the
basic financial statements. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (the
Organization) is a New Hampshire non-profit corporation that operates a wide
variety of community service programs which are funded primarily through grants or
contracts from various federal, state, and locaragencies. Cornerstone Housing
North, Inc. (Cornerstone), is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation that was
incorporated under the laws of the State of New Hampshire for the acquisition,
construction and operation of community-based housing for the elderly.

Nature of activities

The Organization's programs consist of the following:

Agency

Tri-County CAP Administration provides centra! program management
support and oversight to the Organization's many individual programs.
This includes planning and budget development, bookkeeping and
accounting, payroll and HR services, legal and audit services. IT support,
management support, financial support and central policy development.

Tri-County CAP Administration is the liaison between Tri-County
Community Action Program. Inc.'s, Board of Directors and its programs,
ensuring that programs comply with agreements made by the Board to'
funding sources and vendors.

Other responsibilities include the management and allocation of funding
received through a Community Services Block Grant, as well as
management of the Organization's real estate property.

Head Start

Head Start provides comprehensive, services to low-income children and
their families. Head Start supports children's growth and development in a
positive learning environment through a variety of activities as well as
providing services, which include in addition to early learning, health and
family well-being. All children receive health and development screenings,
nutritious meals, oral health and mental health support. Parents and
families are supported in achieving their own goals, such as housing
stability, continued education, and financial stability.-
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Programs support and strengthen parent-child relationships as their child's
primary educator. Head Start staff work as partners with parents to identify
and provide individualized activities that support their child's growth and
development.

Tri County Community Action Head Start serves approximately 250
children in Carroll, Coos & Grafton counties in 9 locations with 13 center-
based classrooms and 1 home-based option.

Guardianship

The Organization's Guardianship program'provides advocacy and guardian
services for the vulnerable population of New Hampshire residents
(developmentally disabled, chronically mentally ill, traumatic brain injury,
■and the elderly suffering from Alzheimer's, dementia, and multiple medical
issues) who need a guardian and who have no family member or friend
willing, able, or suitable to serve in that capacity. This program serves 413
individuals. Additional services include, conservatorship, representative
payee-ship, federal fiduciary services, benefit management services and
private probate accounting services.

Transportation
The Organization's transit program provides various transportation
services: public bus routes, door-to-door service by request, long distance
medical travel to medical facilities outside our regular service area, and
special trips for the elderly to go shopping and enjoy other activities that
are^ located outside the regular service area. The Organization's fleet of 17
wheelchair accessible vehicles offers transportation options to the elderly
and disabled, as well as to the general public.

Volunteer
The Coos County Retired & Senior Volunteers Program (RSVP) maintains
a minimum group of 393 volunteers, ages 55 and older, of which 225
actively served during the last reporting period. These volunteers share
their skills, life experiences, and time with over 60 local non-profit and
public agencies throughout Coos County that depend on volunteer
assistance to meet the needs of their constituents. .Our volunteers donate
over 27,955 hours yearly!

Workforce Development
■The Organization is assisting transitional and displaced workers as they
prepare for new jobs, and also assisting currently-employed workers to
gain the skills required for better jobs.



The Organization is helping to implement New Hampshire's Unified State
Plan for Workforce Development, in line with the federal Workforce
Investment Act. Workforce training programs, with training facilities in
three towns, provide temporary assistance for needy families (TANF)
recipients with 20-30 hours per week of training in the areas of employment
skills, computer skills, and business experience, and also place
participating TANF recipients in community-based work experience sites.

Carroil County Denta!

Tamworth Dental Center (the Center) offers state of the art quality oral
healthcare to uninsured families and individuals. The Center offers a full
array of services including preventative. restorative, and oral surgery. The
Center accepts most dental insurances, state insurances, and offers a
sliding fee scale based on income ratio to federal poverty guidelines. The
school-based project of the Center has undergone modifications necessary
due to the pandemic. 9 outreach schools within the vicinity of the Center
will be made. Education, treatments, and referrals will be made available.

Support Center

The Organization's Support Center at Burch House pr.ovides direct service
and shelter to victims and survivors of domestic and sexual violence and
stalking in Northern Grafton County. Support Center services are
accessible 24 hours a day, 365 days a year. They 'include;. crisis
intervention; supportive counseling; court, hospital and policy advocacy
and accompaniment; emergency shelter; support groups; community
education and outreach; violence prevention programs for students;
information, referrals and assistance accessing other community
resources.

Homeless

Homeless services include an outreach intervention and prevention project
that strives to prevent individuals and families from becoming homeless,
and assists the already homeless in securing safe, affordable housing. The
Organization provides ternporary shelter space for homeless clients.

The Organization also provides some'housing rehabilitation services to
help preserve older housing stock.

Energy Assistance and Outreach

Energy Assistance Services provide fuel and electric assistance through
direct pay to vendors or a discount on the client's bill. Community Contact
sites allow local participants access to energy assistance programs and
other emergency services. The offices provide information to the
Organization's clients about other programs offered, as well as other
programs available through other organizations in the community.
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Low-fncome Weatherization

The NH wealherization program helps low-income families, elderly,
disabled, small children and individuals.lower their home energy costs;
increase their health, safety, and comfort; and improve the quality of living
while improving housing stock in communities around the state utilizing
energy cost saving, health and safety and carbon lowering measures. The
NH Weatherization Assistance Program also creates local NH jobs.

Elder

The Organization's elder program provides senior meals in 14 community
dining sites, home delivered meals (Meals on Wheels) to the frail and
homebound elderly, and senior nutrition education and related
programming. The Coos County ServiceLink Aging & Disability Resource
Center assists with person-centered counseling, Medicare counseling,
Medicaid assistance, long-term care counseling services, and caregiver
supports.

Housing Services

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. (Cornerstone) is subject to a Project
Rental Assistance Contract (PRAC) with the United States Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD), and a significant portion of their
rental income is received from HUD.

Cornerstone includes a 12-unit apartment complex in Berlin. New
Hampshire for the elderly. This operates under Section 202 of the National
Housing Act and is regulated by HUD with respect to the rental charges
and operating methods.

\

Cornerstone has a Section 202 Capital Advance. Under guidelines
established by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Uniform
Guidence, Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, the Section 202 Capital Advance is
considered to be a major program. A separate audit of Cornerstone's
"compliance with its major federal program in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and the
audit requirements of Title 2 of U.S. Code of Federal Regulations part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit
Requirements of Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). An unmodified
opinion was issued.
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Method of accounting

The consolidated financial statements of Tri-Counly Community Action Program,
Inc. have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as
promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC). Under this basis, revenue, other' than contributions,
and expenses are reported when incurred without regard to the date of receipt or
payment of cash.

Basis of presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require the
Organization to report information regarding its finaricial position and activities
according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions include net assets that are not subject
to any donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets may
be used at the discretion of the Organization's management and board of
directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions include net assets subject to stipulations
imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in
nature: those restrictions will be met by actions of the .Organization or by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual In nature, whereby the
donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

The Organization, has net assets with donor restrictions of $596,550 and $678,254
at June 30, 2020 and 2019. respectively. See Note 13.

Contributions

Contributions received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or net

assets with donor resthctions.v depending on the existence and/or nature of any
donor-imposed restrictions. Support that is restricted is reported as an increase in
net assets without donor restrictions if the restriction expires in the reporting period
in which the contribution is recognized. All other donor restricted contributions are
reported as net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the
restriction. When a restriction expires (that is. when a stipulated time restriction
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor-restrictions are
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of
activities as net assets released from restrictions.
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Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year-end. Most of the receivables are amounts due from
federal and state awarding agencies and are based on reimbursement for
expenditures made under specific grants or contracts. A portion of the accounts
receivable, balance represents amounts due from patients at Carroll County Dental
program. Past due receivables are written off at management's discretion using the
direct write off method; this is not considered a departure from accounting principles
generally accepted in the United State because the effects of the direct write off
method approximate those of the allowance method. Management selects accounts
to be written off after analyzing past payment history, the age'of the accounts
receivable, and collection rates for receivables with similar characteristics, such as

length of tirne outstanding. The Organization does not charge interest on
outstanding accounts receivable.

Property and Debreclation

Acquisitions of buildings, equipment, and improvements in excess of $5,000 and all
expenditures for repairs, maintenance, and betterments that materially prolong the
useful lives of assets are capitalized. Buildings, equipment, and improvements are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation Is provided using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets.

Depreciation expense related to assets used solely by an individual program Is
charged directly to the related program. Depreciation expense for assets used by
more than one program is charged to the program based upon a square footage or
other similar allocation.

Depreciation expense related to administrative assets is included in the indirect cost
pool and charged to the programs in accordance with the indirect cost plan.
Maintenance and repairs that do not materially prolong the useful lives of assets are
charged to expense as incurred.

Estimated useful lives are as follows;

Buildings and improvements 20 to 40 years
Vehicles 5 to 8.5 years
Furniture and equipment 5 to 15 years

Client Rents and HUD Rent Subsidy

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s rents are approved on an annual basis by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. Rental increases are prohibited
without such approval. The clients are charged rent equal to 30% of their income
less adjustments allowed by the Department of Housing and Urban Development.
Rent subsidies, are received from the Department of Housing and Urban
Development for the difference between the allowed rents and the amounts
received from the clients.
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Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized
as revenue in the ■ period in which the related services or expenditures are
performed or incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met
aggregated $181,463 and $197,157 as of June 30. 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Nonprofit tax status

The Organization is a not-for-profit Section 501(c)(3) organization in accordance
with the Internal Revenue.Code. It has been classified as an organization that is not
a private foundation under the Internal Revenue Code and qualifies for'a charitable,
contribution deduction for individual donors. The Organization files information
returns in the United States. The Organization's Federal Form 990 (Return of
Organization Exempt from Income Tax), is subject to examination by the IRS,
generally for three years after it is filed. The Organization is no longer subject to
examinations by tax authorities for years prior to 2016.

The Organization follows FASB ASC, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes,
which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and prescribes a
recognition threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition
and measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.
The Organization does not believe th4y have taken uncertain tax positions,
therefore, a liability for income taxes associated with uncertain tax positions has not
been recognized.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is exempt from income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Internal Revenue Service has
determined the Organization- to be other than a private foundation within the
meaning of Section 509(a).

Retirement plan

The Organization , maintains a tax-sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. Ail employees are eligible to
contribute to the plan beginning on the date they are employed. Each employee
may elect salary reduction agreement contributions in accordance with limits
allowed in the Internal Revenue Code. Employer contributions are at the
Organization's annual discretion. In January 2013, employer contribution payments
ceased, therefore as of June 30. 2020 and 2019, there were no discretionary
contributions recorded. Further information can be obtained frorn the
Organization's 403(b) audited financial statements.

Donated services and goods

Contributions of donated services that create or enhance non-financial assets or
that require specialized skills and would typically need to be purchased if not
provided by donation are recorded at their fair values in the period received.
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Contributed noncash assets are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. If

donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded
as net assets with donor restrictions. In the absence of such stipulations,
contributions of noncash assets are recorded as net assets without donor

restrictions.

Donated property and eouipment

Donations of property and equipment are recorded as support at their estimated fair
value at the date of donation. Such donations are reported as net assets without
donor restrictions unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific
purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and
contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and. equiprhent are
reported as net assets with donor restrictions. Absent donor stipulations regarding
how long those donated assets must be maintained, the Organization reports
expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in
service as instructed by the donor. The Organization reclassifies net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions at that time.

Promises to Give

Conditional promises to give are not recognized in the financial statements until the
conditions are substantially met. Unconditional promises to give that are expected
to be collected within one year are recorded . at the net realizable value.
Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one
year are recorded at fair value, which js measured as the present value of their
future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are computed using risk-
adjusted interest rates applicable to the years in which the promises are received."
Amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenue. In the absence of

donor stipulations to the contrary, promises with payments due in future periods are
restricted to use after the due date. Promises that remain uncollected more than

one year after their due dates are written off unless the donors indicate that
payment is merely postponed. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions. There were no

unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one
year at June 30. 2020 and 2019. ^

As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, there were promises to give that were absent of
donor stipulations, but restricted in regards to timing, and therefore classified as net
assets with donor restrictions in the amount of $307,017 and $231,161,
respectively. This amount is included in grants and contracts on the Consolidated
Statement of Activities.

Use of estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United . States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from'those estimates.
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"Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Accounting Standards Codification No. 825 (ASC 825), Disclosures of Fair Value of
Financial Instruments, requires the Organization to disclose fair values of its
financial instruments. . The carrying amount of the Organization's financial
instruments which consists of cash, accounts receivable, deposits and accounts
payable, approximate fair value because of the short-term maturity of those
instruments.

Functional allocation of expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain
costs have been allocated among the program services and supporting activities
benefited.

Program salaries and related expenses are allocated to the various

programs and supporting services based on actual or estimated time
employees spend on each function as reported on a timesheet.

Workers Compensation expenses are charged to each program based upon
the classification of each employee and allocated to the various program
based upon the time employees spend on each function as noted above.

Paid Leave is charged to a leave pool and is allocated to each program as a
percentage of total salaries.

Fringe Benefits are charged to a Fringe Benefit Pool.; These expenses
include employer payroll taxes, pension expenses, health and derital
insurance and unemployment compensation. The pool is allocated to each
program based upon a percentage of salaries.

Depreciation expense is allocated to each program based upon specific
assets used by the program and is reported as depreciation expense on the
statements of functional expenses.

Other occupancy expenses are applicable to assets which are used by
multiple programs. Buildings are primarily charged to the benefiting program
based upon an analysis'of square footage. Costs related to a building include
depreciation, insurance, utilities, building maintenance, etc. These costs are
reported as space costs on the statements of functional expenses.

Insurance: automobile insurance is allocated to programs based on vehicle
usage; building liability insurance is allocated to programs based on square
footage of the buildings; and insurance for furniture and equipment is allocated
to programs using the book basis of the insured assets.
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The remaininQ shared expenses are charged to an Indirect Cost Pool and
are allocated to each program based upon a percentage of program expenses.
The expenses include items such as administrative salaries, general liability
insurance, administrative travel, professional fees and other expenses which
cannot be specifically identified and charged to a program.

The Organization submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits and other indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services. The proposal, effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1. 2019, received
provisional approval and is effective, until amended, at a rate of 12%. Per the
agreement with the U.S. Department of ■ Health and- Human Services, the
Organization's final rate for the year ended June 30, 2019 was 10.4%. The actual
rale for the year ended June 30. 2020 was approximately 10.82%, which is
allowable because it is less than the provisional rate.

Advertising policy.

The Organization uses advertising to inform the community about the programs it
offers and the availability, of services. Advertising is expensed as incurred. The total
cost of advertising for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 was $25,483 and
$11,698, respectively.

Debt Issuance Costs

During the year ended June 30. 2019, the Organization retrospectively adopted the
provisions of the FASB Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2015-03,
'Simplifying the Presentation of Debt issuance Costs." The ASU is limited to
simplifying the presentation of debt issuance costs, and the recognition and
measurement guidance for debt issuance costs is not affected by the ASU.
Amortization expense of $887 has been included with interest expense in the
consolidated statements of functional expenses for both 2020 and. 2019.

New Accountinq Pronouncement

In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-18, Statement of Cash Flows
(230): Restricted Cash (ASU 2016-18). The amendments address diversity in
practice that exists in the classification and presentation of changes In restricted
cash on the statement of cash flows. The amendments require that a statement of
cash flows explain the change during the period in the total of cash, cash
equivalents, and amounts generally described as restricted cash or restricted cash
equivalents. As a result, amounts generally described as restricted cash and
restricted cash equivalents should be included with cash and cash equivalents
when reconciling beginning-of-period and end-of-period total amounts shown on the
statement of cash flows. ASU 2016-18 is effective for the Organization's fiscal year
ending June 30, 2020 and has been applied retrospectively to all periods
presented.
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During the year ended June 30, 2020, the Organization adopted the provisions of
FASB ASU 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope and. the Accounting Guidance for
Contributions Received and Contributions Made (Topic 958). This accounting
standard is meant to help not-for-profit entities evaluate whether transactions
should be accounted for as contributions or as exchange transactions and, if the
transaction is identified as a contribution, whether it is conditional or unconditional.
ASU 2018-08 clarifies how an organization determines whether a resource provider
is receiving commensurate value in return for a grant. If the resource provider does
receive commensurate value from the grant recipient, the transaction is an
exchange transaction and would follow the guidarice under ASU 2014-09 (FASB
ASC Topic 606). If no commensurate value is received by the grant maker, the.
transfer is a contribution. ASU 2018-08 stresses that the value received by the
general public as a result of the grant is not considered to be commensurate value
received by the provider of the grant. Results for reporting the years ending June
30, 2020 and 2019 are.presented under FASB'ASU 2018-08. The comparative
information has not been restated and continues to be reported under the
accounting standards in effect in those reporting periods. There was no material
impact to the financial statements as a result of adoption. Accordingly, no
adjustment to opening net assets was recorded.

Other Matters

The impact of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) and measures to prevent its
spread are affecting the Organization's business. The significance of the impact of
these disruptions, including the extent of their adverse impact on the Organization's
financial operational results, wilt be dictated by the length of time that such
disruptions continue and, in turn, will depend on .the currently unknowable duration
of the C0\/ID-19 pandemic and the impact of governmental regulations that might
be imposed in response to the pandemic. C0\/ID-19 also makes it more
challenging for management to estimate future performance of the Organization,
particularly over the near to medium term.

NOTE 2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY
The following represents the Organization's financial assets as of June 30, 2020
and 2019:

2020 2019

Financial assets at year-end:
Cash and cash equivalents, undesignated $ 2,257,081 $ 1,400,750
Accounts receivable 1.322,852 1,274,083
Pledges receivable 307.017 231.161

Total financial assets 3.886.950 2.905.994
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Less amounts not available to be

used within one year:
Net assets with donor restrictions

Less net assets with time restrictions to be .

met in less than a year

Amounts not available within one year

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months

596,550

f410.015^

186.535

S  3 700.415

678,254

<565.1761

113.078

£-2^92.916

It is the Organization's goal to maintain financial assets to meet 60 days of
. operating expenses which approximates $2,860,000 and $2,786,000 respectively,
at June 30, 2020 and 2019.

NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, funds on deposit with financial
institutions, and investments with original maturities of three months or less. At
year end and throughout the year, the Organization'is' cash balances were
deposited with multiple financial institutions. At June 30, 2020 and 2019, the
balances in interest and non-interest-bearing accounts were insured by the FDIC up
to $250,000. At June 30, 2020 and 2019, there was approximately $2,653,000 and
$1,750,000, respectively, of deposits held in excess of the FDIC limit. Management
believes the Organization is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and
cash equivalerits and considers this a normal business risk.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and restricted cash reported
within the statements of financial position that sum to. the total in the statements of
cash flows as of June 30:

Cash, operations

Restricted cash, current
Restricted cash, long term

Total cash and restricted cash

2020

$ 2,257,081
796,937
384.711

S-3:438.729

2019

$ 1,400,750
583,963
418:936

S2.403.649

Cash Restrictions

The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with a bank as part of
the loan security agreement disclosed at Note 7. It is required to maintain a
balance of $19,968 in the account, which is restricted from withdrawal except to
make payments of debt service or as approved by the US Department of
Agriculture.
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Amounts withdrawn to make payments ofHebt service must be replenished with
monthly deposits until the maximum required deposit balance is achieved. The ■
balance as of June 30. 2020 and 2019 was $20,040 and $20,010. respectively.
The Organization has made all of their scheduled deposits for the years ended
June 30. 2020 and 2019. These amounts are included in restricted cash on the
Statements of Financial Position.

The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with another bank as
part of a bond issue (see bond payable in Note 7). The required balance in the
account is $173,817 and is equal to 12 monthly payments. The balance as of June
30, 2020 and 2019 was $174,626 and $174,451. respectively, and the Organization
was In compliance with this requirement. These amounts are included In restricted
cash on the Statements of Financial Position.

The Organization maintains a deposit account on behalf of clients who participate in
the Guardianship Sen/ices Program. The balance in the account is restricted for
use on behalf of these clients and an offsetting liability is reported on the financial
statements as other current liabilities. The total current liability related to this
restriction at June 30. 2020 and 2019 was $796,937 and $583,963, respectively.
These amounts are included in other liabilities on the Statements of Financial
Position. The total restricted cash within this account at June 30, 2020 and 2019
was $796,937 and $583,963. respectively, and is included in the restricted cash
balance on the Statements of Financial Position.

At June 30. 2019, the Organization had $45,198 in restricted cash, relating to the
property that is held for sale at year end. This was donated to another non-profit
Organization during the year ended June 30.2020.

Certain cash accounts related to Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. are restricted for
certain uses in the Organization under rules and regulations prescribed by the
Department of Housing, and Urban Development. The total amount restricted at
June 30, 2020 and 2019 was $190,045 and $179,277, respectively. See Note 15..

NOTE 4. INVENTORY

■  In 2020 and 2019, inventory included weatherization materials which had been
purchased in bulk, These items are valued at the most recent cost. A physical
inventory is taken annually. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-cut (FIFO)
method. Inventory at June 30, 2020 and 2019, consists of weatherization materials
totaling $102,430 and $85,886, respectively.

NOTE 5. ACCRUED EARNED TIME

For the years ending June 30. 2020 and 2019. employees of the Organization were
eligible to accrue vacation for a maximum of 160 hours. At June 30. 2020 and
2019, the Organization had accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its
employees had earned and vested in the amount of $243,779 and $204,079,
respectively,'
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NOTE 6. PROPERTY

Property consists of the following at June 30, 2020:

Building
Equipment
Construction

in progress
Land

Capitalized
Cost

$■9,810,288
2,105,950

4,727
423.840

Accumulated
Depreciation

$ 3,753,302
1,848,642

$12.344:805

Property consists of the following at June 30, 2019:

Capitalized Accumulated
Cost Depreciation

Building
Equipment
Construction

in progress
Land

$ 9.709.749
1,950.063

2.500
423.640

$ 3.469,618
1,708.917

Net
Book Value

$ 6.056,986
257,308

4,727
423.840

$_6.7_42.86T

Net
Book Value

$6,240,131
241.146

2,500
423.840

The Organization has use of computers and equipment which are the property of
state and federal agencies under grant agreements. The equipment, whose book
value is immaterial to the financial statements, is not included in the Organization's
property and equipment totals.

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30. 2020 and 2019 totaled
$435,310 and $447,669, respectively.

The Organization has property held for sale at June 30. 2020 and 2019 amounting
to $47,000, which is classified as a current asset in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial position. The total loss on the write down to market value of
this property was $255,492 in 2019,

NOTE 7. LONG TERM DEBT
The long term debt of the Organization as of June 30, 2020 and 2019 consisted of
the following:
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^  2020 "2019*-^

Note payable with the USDA requiring 360 monthly
installments of $1,664, including interest at 5% per
annum. Secured by general business assets. Final
installment due January 2027. $ 110,824 $ 124.867

Note payable with a bank requiring 120 monthly
installments of $3,033, including interest at 4.69%
per annum. Secured by first mortgages on two
commercial properties. Final installment due April -
2021. 307,719 328,896

Note payable with a bank requiring 60 monthly
installments of $459, including interest at 5% per
annum. This note was an unsecured line of credit

that was converted to a term loan during the year
ended June 30. 2016. Final installment due April
2021. 4,478 9,618

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly installments oi $312, including interest at
5.49% per annum. Secured by the Organization's •
vehicle. Final installment due August 2021. 4,228 7,642

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly installments of $313, including interest at
5.54% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final installment due July 2021. .3,948 7,385

Note payable to a financing company requiring 60
monthly installments of $143, including interest at
5.99% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final installment due November 2020. 705 2,331

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly installments of $248. including interest at
6.10% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final installment due February 2023. 7.294 9,739

Note payable with a bank requiring 60 monthly
installments of $2,512, including interest at 5.51
per annum. Secured by second mortgage on
commercial property. Final balloon payment is due in
March 2023. 387,227 395,429
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2020 2019

Bond payable with • a bank requiring monthly
installments of $14,485, including interest of 2.75®/o
plus the bank's internal cost of funds multiplied by
67% with an indicative rate of 3.28%. Secured by
first commercial real estate mortgage on various
properties and assignments, of rents at various
properties. Final installment due August 2040.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. capital advance
due to the Department of Housing and Urban
Development. This capital advance is not subject to
interest or principal amortization and will be forgiven
after 40 years, or in August 2047.

Cornerstone Housing North. Inc. mortgage payable
due to New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority.
The mortgage Is not subject to interest or principal
amortization. Payments are deferred for 40 years,
final payment due in August 2047.

Total long term debt before unamortized debt
issuance costs

Unamortized deferred financing costs

Total long term debt
Less-current portion due within one year

2,547.308 2,634,595

Years ending
June 30

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

Thereafter

1,617,600 1,617,600

250.000 250.000

5,241,331 5,388,102
ri0.9311 :f11.8181

5,230,400 5,376,284
M37.843V 1148.4491

30, 2020 were as follows;

Amount

437.843-
123,107

485,399
118,243
122.486

3.954.253

As described at Note 3, the Organization is required to maintain a reserve account
with a bank for the first two notes payable listed above.
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NOTE 8. "CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS

During the year ended June 30, 2016, the Organization leased a phone system and
copier under the terms of capital leases, expiring in November 2020 and March
2021, respectively. During the year ended June 30, 2017, the Company leased an
additional copier under the terms of a capital lease, expiring in May 2021. The
assets and liabilities under the. capital leases are recorded at the lower of the
present value of the minimum lease payments or the fair value of the assets. The
assets are depreciated over their estimated lives.

The obligations included in capital leases at June 30, 2020 and 2019, consisted of
the following:

2020 2019
Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly installments of $20a for principal and
interest at 9.5% per annum. The lease is secured
by the phone system and will mature in November
2020. $ 1.213 $ 3.291

Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly installments of $122 for principal and
interest at "8.841% per annum. The lease is
secured by a. copier and will mature in March
2021. - 944 2,261

Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly installments of $122 for principal and
interest at 8.918% per annum. The lease is
secured by a copier and will mature in May 2021. 1.397 2.673

3.554 8,225
Less current portion (3.554) (4.870)

$  -

The scheduled maturities of capital lease obligations as of June 30. 2020 were as
follows:

Year ending
June 30 Amount

2021 . S
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NOTE 9, DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE

The Organization has available a $750,000 line of credit with its, primary financial
institution which is secured by real estate mortgages" and assignments of leases
and rents on various properties as disclosed in the line of-credit agreement.
Borrowings under the line bear interest at 5.00% per annum. There was no balance
outstanding at June 30, 2020 and 2019. The line is subject to renewal each
January.

The Organization was issued an unsecured revolving line of credit in 2014 with the
New Hampshire Department of Administration Services. The Organization was not
required to make payments of interest or principal prior to maturity. The unsecured
revolving line of credit was paid off in full during the year ended June 30. 2019.

NOTE 10. OPERATING LEASES

The Organization has entered into numerous lease commitments for space.
Leases under non-cancelable lease agreements have various starting dates,
lengths, and terms of payment and reriewal. Additionally, the Organization has
several facilities which are leased on a month to month basis. For the years ended
June 30, 2020 and 2019, the annual rent expense for leased facilities totaled
$181,004 and $181,127, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases having
initial terms in excess of one year as of June 30, 2020, are as follows:

Years ending
June 30 Amount

2021 $ 127,803
2022 7.321

^  135 124

NOTE 11. IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS

The-Organization records the value of in-kind-contributions according to the
accounting policy described in Note 1. The Head Start, transportation and elder
programs rely heavily on volunteers who donate their services to the Organization.
These services are valued based upon the comparative market wage for similar
paid positions.

The Organization is also the beneficiary of a donation of In kind in the form of below
market rent for some of the facilities utilized by the Head Start and elder programs.
The value of the in-kind rent is recorded at the difference between the rental

payment and the market rate for the property based upon a recent appraisal.
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the Organization. The financial statements do not reflect any value for these
donated services since there is no reliable basis for making a reasonable
determination.

NOTE 12. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. receives a majority of its support from
federal and state governments. For the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019,

.  approximately $14,380,020 (74%) and $13,951,828 (77%). respectively, of the
Organization's total revenue was received from federal and state governments. If a
significant reduction in the level of support were to occur. It would have a significant
impact on the Organization's programs and activities.

Cornerstone Housing . North, Inc. receives/a large majority of" its support from the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. For the years ended June
30, 2020 and 2019, approximately 68% and 69%, respectively, of the Organizations
total revenue was derived from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development. In the absence of additional revenue sources, the future existence of
Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is dependenfupon the funding policies of the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development.-

The majority of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s assets are apartment projects,
for which operations are concentrated in the elderly person's real estate market. In
addition, the Organization operates in a regulated environment. The operation of
the Organization is subject to administrative directives, rules and regulations of
federal, state and local regulatory agencies, including, but not limited to, HUD.
Such.administrative directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an
act of Congress or an administrative change mandated by HUD. Such changes
may occur wjth little notice or inadequate funding to pay for the related cost,
including the administrative burden, to comply with the change.

NOTE 13. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following specific program
services as of June 30. 2020 and 2019:

2020 2019

Temporary Municipal Funding $ 307.017 $ 231,161
FAR 102,998 117,470
Restricted Buildings 85,713 87,541
DOE 46,287
FAR/EAR 24,350 ■  11,290
Loans - HSGR 22,029 19,907
RSVP Program Funds ,5,887 7,056
Donations to Maple Fund 1,571 1,571
RSVP - Matter to Balance 500
Loans-HHARLF 104 _
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BWP/HRRP Program 94
10 Bricks Shelter Funds - 142,190
Support Center - 25,939
Weatherization - . 25.000

Senior Meals - 5,130

Head Start ; 3.999

Total net assets with donor restrictions $ 596.550

NOTE 14. COMiVllTIVtENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Grant Compliance

The Organization receives funds under several federal and state grants. Under the
terms of the grants the Organization is required to comply with various stipulations
including use and time .restrictions. If the Organization was found to be
noncompliant with the provisions of the grant agreements, the Organization could
be liable to the grantor or face discontinuation of funding.

Environmenta! Cbnfmgenc/es

On March 30, 2009, the Organization's Board of Directors agreed to secure
ownership of a 1.2-acre site, located in Berlin, New Hampshire. There are 2
buildirigs on this site designated as the East Wing and West Wing Buildings which
were formerly used as a research and development facility for the Berlin Mills
Company.

The exterior soil and interior parts of .the East Wing. Building contained
contaminants which required environmental rernediation. In a letter dated May 2,
2012, the State ef New Hampshire Department of Environment Services (the
Department) noted that the remedial actions for the exterior soils and parts of the
East Wing Building had been completed to the Department's satisfaction.

In addition, the Department noted that the contaminants related to the West Wng
Building did not pose an exposure hazard to site occupants, area residents, and the
environment, provided" the West Wing Building is rnaintained to prevent further

'  structural deterioration. If further deterioration occurs and contaminants are

released into the environment, the Organization could be required to take additional
action including containment and remediation.

Loss Contingencies

During the year ended June 30, 2018, legal actions were brought against the
Organization. Due to the uncertainty of the outcome of such cases as of June 30,
2020, as well as the uncertainty of the Organization's potential liability, no amount
has been accrued by the Organization at this time.
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jjQJ£J^^^eLA^EIVlENt^"RESERVE:AN^RESjDUArREC
Under Cornerstone Rousing KlortfTTlnc.'s regulatoiv'aTreWe'ril'TSi^^ HUDf'tKe
Organization is required to set aside amounts into a replacement reserve for the
repiacement of property and other project expenditures approved by HUD. HUD-
restricted deposits of $155,278 and $129,407 were held in a segregated account at
June 30. 2020 and 2019, respectively. HUD-restricted deposits generally are not
available for operating purposes.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s use of the ,residual receipts account is contingent
upon HUD'S prior written approval. Residual receipts of $31,049 and $46,514 were
held in a segregated account for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019,
respectively.

HUD has Initiated policies to recapture funds built up in residual receipts accounts
upon renewal of the Organization's project rental assistance contract. The policies
direct that the amounts in excess of certain limits in the residua! receipts account be

■  (a) used to offset rent subsidies due from HUD under HAP contracts, or (b) remitted
directly to HUD. The policies generally require project owners to limit the monies
accumulated in the residual receipts account to $250 per unit.

In accordance with the policy noted above, subsequent to year end the
Organization was required to remit funds to HUD totaling $31,412. In addition to the
funds remitted, HUD approved the Organization to withdraw $11,852 from the
residual receipts account for equipment.

Mnrg 16. RECLASSIFICATION ^

Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year's financial statements were
reclassified to enhance comparability with the current year's financial statements.

NOTE 17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements.
Non-recognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through October 28,
2020, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATtERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE mH GOVERNMENT AUPmNG STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of

Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc.
Berlin. New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc..(a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial
position as of June 30. 2020, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash
flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated October 28, 2020.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting.
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Tri-County Community
Action Program Inc.ls internal control over financial reporting (intemal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial slatemerits, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County
Community Action Program Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in Internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned, functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misslatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there Is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or delected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that rfiight be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of (his Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our, testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an Integral part of ah audit performed in
'accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

October 28, 2020

North Conway, New Hampshire
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TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS* REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of •
Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc.
Berlin, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in . the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s major federal programs for the year
ended June 30. 2020. Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule, of findings and
questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Tri-County Community Action
Program Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally ..accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the .United States;
and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Pan 200. Uniform
Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Those standards and Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Tri-County Community
Action Program Inc.'s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, Tri-Counly Community Action Program, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each
of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance
Management of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective Internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Tri-County
Community Action Program Inc.'s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees. In the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance Is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a" combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that Is less
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies In internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on Internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of intemal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

October 28, 2020
North Conway, New Hampshire
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TRI^OLJNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of Tri-County
.  Community Action Program, Inc.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the
Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and other Matters Based on an Audit of {financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Tri-County Community
Action Program. Inc. which would be required to be reported in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs during the audit
are reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with the Uniform Guidance.

5. The auditors' report on compliance' for the major federal award programs for Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major programs.

6. No audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a) are
reported in this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as major programs included;

U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services. LIHEAP - CFDA #93.568

U.S. Dept. of Health S Human Services, CSBG - CFDA #93.569

New Hampshire Public Utilities Company. Home Energy Assistance (non-Federal)

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. was.determlned to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEtVlENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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Th>County Community Action Program, Inc.

Key Personnel

FAP PY2022

•  V

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from,

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

leanne Robillard Chief Executive Officer $120,000 0% 0

Randall PiloCte Chief Financial Officer $85,080 0% 0

Kristv Letendre Chief Program Officer $80,000 0% 0

Brenda Gagne Economic Supports

Department Head

$65,000 35% $22,750

)osh Poisspn Health and Nub-ltibn $45,000 50% $22,500

Department Head



Jeanne li. Robillard

OTREi^CtWS'

Progtam development, maitagemcnt and administtftrion • Community coUaborations
Dcvdopmcm of policy, protocol, and service delivciy to meet fundec standard!

Grant writing and management ♦ Budget performance and financial reporting
Innovative lolurioos & problem lolving ♦ Capacity building

Professional presentations ♦ Public speaking
Dedication ♦ Imagination ♦ Dcterminarion • Forticudc

iRypEWBE^CE

Tri-Connij Commnnity Action Progranu. Inc.
Clii^ Executive Officer
Berlin. IVH 20ta ' cumni FT^mptoymeng

Tri^unty Conunnnitr Action Program®, Inc.
Chid Operating Officer
Berlin. NB 2016-2018
Responsible for the opcrarions of six agency Divisions with 15 individual programs that provide over
60 consutncr services across three counties of Northern New Hampshire. Essential dunes indudc;
supervision of Division Directors, oversee and monitor program resources, revenues, expenditures
and budget performance; tactical oversight of programs to meet or exceed agency defined strategic
goals; develop and implement strategics to improve individual programs and overall agency pro;^
and fiscal pcrfonnancc; oversee and lead special projects such as the Annual Report, Sttat^c Plan,
Community Needs Assessment process, and work with Senior Management Team to develop new
ficjvicc initiatives. Provide tactical guidance to Division Dircaors to trouble shoot issues and problems
in the daily operations of programs.

Tri-Coontj (lomroimliy Aelion Programs, Inc.
Dirfislon Dirocton TCCAP Prevenlioii Services
BerUii. NB 2015-2016 . ' .
Responsible for four agency programs under the umbrella of TCCAP Prevention Services; oversee
division resources, revenues, and expenditures and monitor budget.performance; general oversigbt of
programs to meet or exceed agency defined strategic goals; supervise program directors; wnte gr^ts
to support programs, monitor results, and prepare grant reports and financial statements for fund^
and agency, develop fundtaising and marketing strategics for programs; represent progrwn through
participation in sUtc and local initiatives relative to program/division goals and service debvery
collaborate with stakeholders and elected officiab, including presenting legislative testimony.

Tri-Cooot^ Community Action Program®, Inc.
Program/Dfvisioo Director: Support Center at Borch Boose
Littleton. New Hampehirc 2007-3015 j j • i
OvctScc diuJy operation and supervision of domestic and sexual violence cnsis center and residential
shelter, write grants to support programs, monitor results, and prepare grant reports and financial
statements for fundcrs and parent agency; oversee program resources, revenues and cxpendimrcs, and
monitor budget performance and progress toward strategic goals; acatc and direct vjcom advocacy
programs to ensure compliance with grant dcUverablcs and appUcablc state and fedcr^law; develop
fondraising and marketing strategies; participate in state and local collaborations to enhance vicom
services; represent program in state and federal victim service iniriaDvcs. including prcscnuuon of
li^sladvc testimony create and present trainings for medical and legal professionals on legal standards
and best practices for victim services,
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- Responsible for grant fiscal tracking, reportiog, funds release and account transfers, bi-weekly payroll
and 941 payments, accounts payable and receivable, month end reconciliations for bank accounts,
credit cards, petty cash, retail and market sales; monthly POS/QB reconciliation for three retail
locations, preparing monthly cash flow, forecasts, and standard fiscal reports for Board of Directors.

TrkCoimtj ConmumiSy Action ProgrAms. Inc.
Direct Sci'fteco/Volonteer Coordinator: Support Center at Borch Hoiuo
Littleton, New Dompalaxre 1997 to 3007
Provide advocacy and direct service to victims of domestic and sexual violence; supervise court
advocacy programs; recruit, train and supervise staff, volunteers, and interns; develop agency systems,
policies and protocols; create and present community outreach presentations and campaigns; present
school-based violence prevention classes for grades K-12; provide on-cali coverage of crisis line

Directors HaverhiD Areo Javeiille Diveraiofi Program
WoodwiDe, New Dampshire 1999-3001
Recruit, train, and supervise volunteer diversion committees; establish community programming for
diverted youth; supportive counseling of youth; maintain collaborative rcladonships between the court
system, juvenile service officers, local police departments, and diversion program; prepare and file
court reports on diverted youth; community outreach and education

Coniaaelor/THIe 1 Teacbcn Northern Family Inatitnte-Jefferaon Shelter
JeUereon, New nompshire 199^1999
Provide individual supportive counseling to adjudicated youth, facilitate peer support groups, develop
and implement tzeatroent plans and case management services to clients, supervise and tutor youth in
classroom setting, supervise youdt in daily living skills

EtIiicaUon

BS in Hainan Servieee, Springfield CoUege School ol Haman Servicca, Boatoo, MA
Crimina) Justice Concentration, Graduaitd with 4.0 CPA

AS in Drag and Alcohol BehabUJtation Coonselmg IDABC Progront)
Sonthcrn Connecticnt Continajnify College, New Doven. CT

Additional iS?lkiMn. IProieasionol Xcadergliip and AflaliatiiowH

♦ Chairman, BedUehcm Board of Selectmen, Town of Bethlehem TwiceEltcted 2006'2010

♦ Chairman, Arts Alliance of Northern New Hampshire 2000-2005, Tnojanr t996'199S
♦ Chairman, HavcrhiU Area Family Violence Council 1998-200}

♦ Certified PRIME FOR UFE Impaired Ddvct Intervention Program Instrxictor #NH16199
♦ Registered Sexual Harassment PrevcntioD Trainer in the State of New Hampshire
♦ Board Member, Wococn's Rural Entrepreneurial Network 2014; I/idwuiua/Mefftbfr 2008-2017
♦ Bethlehem Planning Board 2010 - 201S
♦ Bethlehem Conservation Commission 20O6 - atrrtHl

♦ Granite United Way, North Country Cabinet Member 2011-2012
♦ TCCAP; Commendadon- Division Director Award. 2011
♦ Bethlehem Gtizcn's Advisory Committee on Recycling 2007-2010

♦ ■ Licensed Foster Parent, State of NH 2000-2006

♦ Small Business Owner: Aurora Energies 2016- turrtni
♦ Speakeasy Trio Jaax Vocalist/Sweet Jarnm Swing Band Ja22 Vocalist 1997-eumnt
♦ Member, United States Figure Skating Assodation/Intcrnadonai Skadag Insdtute otmnlsintt 199}



Ran da l l S . P ivotjvi

Summary

Accountiiig profcsaional with ovw 29 yean of experieocc, of which 21 years were with a single pnvatc manufacturer.
16 years of experience managjng accounting professionals. Key competencies include:

Financial Statements Accoun.tsPayablcs _ Inventory .
Bank Reconciliations Accounts Receivables Salcs/UscTax

Budgeting Cash Flow Management Audits Forecasting
Experience

TRT-COUNTY COMMUNnV ACnON PROGRAM. tNC.. Berlin. NH 06/2013-Prescnt

WoA closely with the^CEO, Treasurer and Finance Committee to idci^fy performance goals for the Agency and to
maintain systems to monitor performance against those goals. Plan, direct, cocrdmatc, implement and evaluate thefinancialmanagementsystemsandactivitiesoftbeAgcncywithabudgetofSlSM. . - j j
.  prcpare/providcscompleteandaccuraicfinancial, statisHcal.and accotmtingrccoidsforthc Agency and outside

regulatory agencies. . '
•  As a member of the senior management team, assists in the formulation and execution of corporate nnancc

policies, objectives and programa j- »

•  Prepares program and agency budgets in conjunctioo with the CEO and Prograra Directors. Plan, direct,0  coordinate, implement and evaluate fiscal pciformnncc reviews of Tri-County CAPs divisions.
.  Hire, train, directandevaluatecraployccpcrformanccwithmtbcdepartment;recommcDdpromotions.and salary

• ftovld^nupervisioa and direction for the Facilities Management team, ensuring that all mortgages, leases andcovcnantsarcmajniainedforlVi-CouniyCAP'sfacilities. Creationoffive-yearcapiialplan. ^
• Reviews cash flows for each division, monitor cash management practices, andmonitor in vestments associated

with each property.

•  Prepared five-year debt reduction plan.

Fiscal Director/Interim CFO (2016-2017) n a
m Direct and manage a fiscal staff of 5 and processes associated with the general ledger, payroll, and accounts

payable, accounts receivable, cash receipts and fixed assets. ^ ^ j c
•  PrBparcandsupavisetheproductionofrmancial.statcmcntsincludingBalanceSbcet, Revenue and Expense

Renorls and Cost Summaries on a monthly and annual basis.
• Maintain proper accounting controls on grants and cantributions to ensure accurate rcvcmic reportmg and expense

tracking to support periodic mcnitoring's by fundcrs and auditors.
•  Ensure all balance sheet, revenue and expense accounts arc analyzed and reconciled periodically.
• Collaborate with Division Directors to monitor departmental revenue and expenses versus budget.
• Worked with the CFO to develop real lime monthly and annual financial reporting; and implcmentmg

departmental goals.
•  Prepare audit schedules for external auditors.
• Collaborate with external auditors in completing annual audit in a timely manner.

Accounting Manager (2015-2016)

Sr. Accountant (2013-2014)
RANDALL PILOTTE RESUME:



KENTNUTRXnON GROUP. INC Tf/k/a Blue Seal Feeds. lnc.\Londonderry. NH 03/1989-09/2010

Aflsista Qt CoatroUer (2005-2010)

•  Ensured ao accurateenddmetynionthly and year end closed coQsisting of (be preparatioD of a consolidated and
individual financial statement in accordance with GAAPfornme manufacturing plants and II retail stores with
gross reveiiues in excess of $200M Additional responsibilities included preparing journal cDtries, account
analysis, inventory review and observation, tixed assets, and depredation.

• Managed,trained.andsupcrvisedastafTQCCOuntantresponableforensuringaccurateJoania] entries, inventory
reconciliation, tonnage tax return^ bank recondliations, and assignment ofspecial projects.

•  Oversaw all aspects of proprietaiy software, multi-state payroll system for 500 en^loyees. Prepared all federal
and state payroll tax reports^ ioctudingquarterly and year-end returns, processing of W2s, and supervision of
payroll clerk.

•  Interfacedwith ISvariousbanksthroughoutNewEnglandandMid-Atlanticareauscdasdepositories.
•  Preparedmulti-statcsalesAjsetaxretumsandactedaspointofcontactforaudits.
•  Pro-actively coached and consulted plant and store management on (be annual budget development process.
•  Oversaw moolb-endaccmals.

•  Assisted and re^onded to auditors' requests on annual audit.
•  Filed annual fmnchise and abandoned property reports with appropriate states.

Accounting Manager(l999-2005)

Supported the Corporate ConiroUer's initrativesby providing supervision and oversight to (he Accounting function.
Supervised and trained two accountspayaUeclerks onCharlof Accounts, Accounts Payable, timely and accurate
processing wd promcot ofvendor's invoices, employee travel reimbursements, and staiidard accountingpracticcs.

Acconnlant/Payroll Snpervisor (1994-1999)

Accountant (1989-1994)

NORTHERN TELECOM. INC.. Concord. NH 05/1987-03/1989

Associate Results Accountant (1988-1989)

Accounts Payable (1987-1988)

Education

Bachelor of Science. Accounting, Prankltn PterceColleoe. Concord, NH
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"If human beings are perceived as potentials rathcrlhan
problems.as possessirigstrengthsinsteadofweaknesses.as

unlimited ratherthan dull and unresponsive,then tbey thrive
and grow to theircapabilities."

-Barbara Bush

Eioerlcnce

July 2020-Pretent

Chief Programs Officer* TCCAP, Inc

Responsible to provide leadership, supervision, oversight, and management of
the agency's programs and services directly or through a program director or
manager as wcl 1 as works with the Chief Executive Officer to develop fu^re
business for the agency. Responsible to ensure that all programs and services
comply with national pro^am standards and state / federal govcming laws and
requirements.

Uay20l9-Proient

Division Director* TCCAP, Ihc- Prcvenrion

Responsible to provide Sr. Uadcrship and oversight to the development,
design, daily operation, compliance, and financial solvency of the programs
and facilities under Prevention Services which include Guardianship Services;
Homeless Programs, including Tyler Slain Homeless Shelter, and Advocacy
and Support Services for Victims of Domestic Violence and Sexual Assault,
including Emergency Shelter Services at the Support Center at Burch House

Sopt 201ft~pr«sont .

Division Operations Coordinator*TCCAP, Inc- Prevention

Responsible formomtonng compliance ofgrant deliverables and legal /cthi^
integrity ofprograms and services offered throughout the Division. Responsible
to compile and analyze division data; reporting trends and outcomes to Sr.
management and local stakeholders. Responsible to^dcvelop. review, and
update program written policy, procedures, and work flows. Responsible for
program development and oversight.

May2017-Auou8t 2018
North Country SUD Continuum of Care FaclUj
Coordinator -North Country Health Consoi

COCF: The North Couhtiy Region's desij
work with regional key stakeholders to condv
analysis; reporting back findings to NH DH
of a comprehensive plan aimed to • crcj
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Aprfl 2014-May 2017
Division Director • TCCAP» Inc- Clinical Services

Responsible to provide Sr. Leadership and oversight to. the developmnt,
ign, daily operation, compliance, and financial solvency of the programs and
itics undo Clinical Services including the Division of Alcohol and odter

ices, Friendship House; the region's 32- bed Residential Treatment
and the Tamworth Dental Center Practice.

.pr1l2014

late Division Director •TCCAP, Inc- Division of ̂cohol and Drogs

njunction with the Division Director, responsible to provide joint Sr
l^ership and oversi^t to the development, design, daily operation,

liance, and financial solvency of the programs and fsciiitios under the
ivisioD of Alcohol and other Drug Services, including Friendship House, the

repon'a 32- bed Residential Treatment facili^, the out-patient SUD treatment
practice with 6 satellite sites throughout the 3 counties in the North Country and
the Impaired Driver Care Management Program.

AccoinpHshments

Friendship House New Construction-Bethlehem, NH-$5.2 MIL - 20IS-2018

17,588-sq ft, 32-Bcd Residential SubslanccUse Disorder Treatment Facility

•  Submission of state and federal grant applications resulting in $2.7 MIL in
awards ft executed a grass roots advocacy can^aign iccuriag the remaining S2.S
MIL in anonymous donations

•  Issued oil fioal project approvals on the design, project development,
construcHofi. aubtiussioQ of permit applications and towa zoning requirements,
and Ucensure and compliance standards.

Implemented New Rcimbuiscmcnt System, 2015

•  ElinuDated the Division's dcpendcDceoDgrut funding by successfully procuring '
contracts and credcntialing with NH Medicaid, MCO'i, and Cotnmercta]
insurance companiescreatlngeligibility to submitclaimsonafe^for-servicebasis
stabilizing revenue and enhancing rates for service.

•  Successfully negotiated a contract oinendmeni with DHHS lo expand tillable
'services to mclude Ouqiaiient and Jntensive Outpatieut services resulting in an
increase to from $1.8 MIL to S2.SMIL

Expert Fimelist - Guidance Document on Best Practices: Community-Based
MATforOpioid Usc'Disordcrs io New Hampshire, First Edition, 2016

Civiclnvolvement

2019 - Present MWV Supports Recovery
2017 - Present North Country Serenity Ce
2016-Present Stand-UpAn^oscogginN^
2016-2018 Project Aware, BHS,Ad
2017-Present Lhtlcton ATOD Cpaliti
2018-Present Lancaster Area Ccalitio;

2016-2017 NCHC Board of Direct.
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L Creative flair Good sense of humor Excellent written and

oral communication
skills

|®!|aging Community
^^^iter

Cultural intellige^e Well- Informed in

policy and procedure
development

in OfGce Versatile and

adaptable .
Proficient in budget
development and
management

I^lfction focused
l^blem resolution

Computer and
technology adept

Lateral thinking and
logical reasoning .

Elwique leadership
Iprougb' empowerment

Knowledgeable grant
writer

Innovative

^Detail oriented Creative strategic
planner

Experienced noi>-
profit management

Excellent Community •

and political relations
Advocacy Approachable,

relsteble, and relevant

Education

Plymouth State Univerilty, Plymouth NH.
2017-In Progress|Busincs$ Administration
Coursework: accounting, economics, finance, roanagemenl, marketing theories
and practices of business ethics and social responsibility, quantitative sJdlls to
analyze.
White Mountains Community CoUege, Berlin NH.
2015-2017 jSusioess Adiriinistration
CouTseworlc: management, accounting; fin^cc, strategy, economics, statistics,
marketing, operations/project management, cntrcprcncwship, and compulCT
applications. Ccmplel^ requifcmcnts of the first two years of a four-year
business adminiriration degree, AS-equivalcnt, 4.0GPA
White Mouotains Community College, Berlin NH.
2011 [Leadership North Country
Coursework: The program selects a diverse group aspiring leaders in northern
New Hampshire through a competitive nomination and opplicatioo process.
Candidates participate in a 9-month program focused on educarion, arts and
culture, leadership and civil engagement, travel and tourism, and govcmmcnt
and politics.

References
Available upon request
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BrendaGagne

Tri County Community Action Program Inc.

Professional Skills:

Demonstrated administrative experience and skills

Fiscal management skills or experience in administering grants and/or department budgets
Strong grant development experience, high quality research, for federal, state funding
Excellent interpersonal skills with an ability to build and maintain among faculty and staff
Previous administrative experience or evidence of administrative skills required to lead a large department

Leadership skills and experience to implement policies and procedures
Effective communication skills and team building capabilities

Tri County Community Action Program
Economic Supports Department Head
6/2020 to Present

Manage a department of 4 Program Directors and staff

Advise programs on funding opportunities to include Federal, Stale and Local
Represent Agency at Stale and Local levels.

Monitor Program Budgets and Operations

Handle staff complaints when merited

Tri County TransU
Director of Transportation
5/2017-6/2020

Responsibilities include;
Oversight of the operations, maintenance and administrative functions of a social service transportation program
serving Coos, Northern Grafton and Carroll Counties.

Grant Management State of NH DOT, NH DHHS
Drug St Alcohol Management
Financial Management
Title VI, ADA Policy Management

Tri County Transit
Operations Manager
7/2004-5/2017



^esponsffiQjties^bclude;^
•Running the daily operations of a public transit and para transit service.
•Facility Management.
•Gathering statistics
•Quarterly reporting toNHDOTand BEAS.
•Preparing quarterly invoices to BEAS and NHDOT
•Weekly employee scheduling, staff management.
•Creating procedure manuals
•Grant writing
•Budget preparation
•Writing Warrant Articles
•Dmg & Alcohol Testing
•Emergency Preparedness

Mountain VQlage Construction
Accounts Manager/Office.Manager
5/1995- 1/2004 '

RttponsibUitles Included;
•Customer service.

•Accounting using Quick Books Pro.
•Preparing payroll and Tax Payments.
•Preparing Customer Statements and Invoices.
•Accounts Receivable and Accounts Payable.

•Creating and running Profit and Loss Reports.
•Data Entry.
•Phone communications and general secretarial duties.

Milan Parks and Recreation Dept.
Parks and Recreation Director

6/1997 - 3/2002

Responsibilities included;
•Directed and implemented sports and recreational programs for youth and adults for the
Towns of Milan, West Milan, and Dummcr.

•Development of new programs and year round activities.
•Producing yearly budgets.
•Applying for Federal and Stale Grants.
Education:

Granite State College
Emergency Management

Southern Now Hampshire University
Bachelor of Business Administration
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JOSHUA POISSON

PROGRAM DIRECTOR

ENERGY ASSISTANCE SERVICES

KEY SKILLS

MS Office Suite proficient* Ability to

work collaboratively • Problem

solving • Leadership skills • Excellent

organizational skills • Meticulous

ahention to detail • Approachable
and relatable • Strong interpersonal

& communication skills

CONTACT

ACTIVITIES AND INTERESTS

Family •Travel • Fishing • Hiking

REFERENCES

Available upon request

EXPERIENCE

PROGRAM DIRECTOR - ENERGY ASSISTANCE SERVICES, TCCAP, INC.
MAY 2021 -PRESENT

Directly responsible for the supervision and operation of all

personnel, programs, and projects under Fuel & Energy Assistance.

Manage fiscal operations including budget development and
authorization of expenditures while following all guidelines and

procedures given by the Federal Government.

ACCOUNTING TECHNICIAN & BUDGET ANALYST, TCCAP, INC.

NOV 2015-MAY 2021

Responsible for reviewing and processing all accounts payable
Invoices submitted from the organization's programs. Process

check runs on a weekly basis. Review the compan/s cash receipts
daily. Monthly reconciliations of vendor accounts. Yearly tasks
include 1099 tax form creation and assisting with budget process.

BOOKKEEPER TRANSIT DIVISION, TCCAP, INC.

MAR 2015-NOV 2015

Responsible for daily processing of invoices, counting of bus fare
collection boxes, and preparation and deposlting.of funds.

Reconcile vendor accounts for accuracy, assist with division budget
creation, and monthly reconciliation of bank accounts.

EDUCATION

NH COMMUNITY TECHNICAL COLLEGE, BERLIN NH

1998 I COMPUTER TECHNOLOGY

PLYMOUTH STATE UNIVERSITY, PLYMOUTH NH

1997 I TEACHER - PHYSICAL EDUCATION

BERLIN HIGH SCHOOL, BERLIN NH

1993 - 1997 I GENERAL EDUCATION

CIVIC AFFILIATIONS .

2019-2021 Board Treasurer North Woods Learning Center


